
 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING  
Thursday, July 14, 2016 

7:30 p.m. 
CITY COUNCIL CHAMBERS 
680 Park Avenue 
Idaho Falls, Id  83402 

Thank you for your interest in City Government. If you wish to express your thoughts on a matter listed below, it is best to 
contact Councilmembers by email or personally before the meeting. Be aware that an amendment to this Agenda may be 
made upon passage of a motion that states the reason for the amendment and the good faith reason that the Agenda 
item was not included in the original Agenda posting. City Council Meetings are live streamed at www.idahofallsidaho.gov, 
then archived on the city website. If you need communication aids or services or other physical accommodations to 
participate or access this meeting please contact City Clerk Kathy Hampton at 612-8414 or the ADA Coordinator Lisa Farris 
at 612-8323 as soon as possible and they will make an effort to accommodate your needs. 

  

1. Call to Order. 
 

2. Pledge of Allegiance. 
 
3. Public Comment.  Members of the public are invited to address the City Council regarding matters 
that are not on the Agenda or already noticed for a public hearing. When you address the Council, please state 
your name and address for the record and please limit your remarks to three (3) minutes. The Mayor may 
exercise discretion to decide if and when to allow public comment on an agenda item that does not include a 
public hearing. If the Mayor determines your comments may be made later in the meeting, she will let you 
know when you may make your comments. Please note that matters currently pending before the Planning 
Commission or Board of Adjustment which may be the subject of a pending enforcement action, or which are 
relative to a City personnel matter are not suitable for public comment. 
 

4. Consent Agenda.  Any item may be removed from the Consent Agenda at the request of any member 
of the Council for separate consideration.  

 
A. Idaho Falls Power: 

 
1) Maintenance Obligations and Ownership Agreement with Bonneville Power Administration 

 
B. Items from the City Clerk: 

 
1) Approval of Expenditure Summary for the month of June, 2016. 

 
2) Approval of Treasurer’s Report for the month of June, 2016. 

  
3) Approval of Minutes from the May 26, 2016, Idaho Falls Power Board Meeting, June 6, 2016, 

Council Work Session, June 9, 2016, Regular Council Meeting, June 20, 2016, Regular Council 
Meeting, and June 29, 2016, Council Work Session (Parks Reports).    

 
4) Approval of License Applications, including a Transfer of Beer to Be Consumed to A Street Soup 

Market (from Alchemy Bistro), all carrying the required approvals. 
 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: To approve all items on the Consent Agenda according to the 
recommendations presented. 

 
5. Regular Agenda. 
  

http://www.idahofallsidaho.gov/


 
 

Page 2 of 7 

 

 
A. Municipal Services 

 
1) Bid IF-16-1 Sole Source Purchase, Schlage Brand Integrated Security Locks for City Facilities:  
The Municipal Services Department requests authorization to advertise the City's intent to make a 
sole source procurement following a 14-day period, as per I.C. § 67-2808, and then to issue a 
purchase order for Schlage brand name locks, cylinders, keys and electrified access control 
products in the amount of $96,771.00, once the advertisement has been completed. Schlage is the 
only manufacturer that has the ability to integrate with the City's existing access security system. 
Funding for the access security hardware is included the 2015/16 department budgets identified 
below. 

 
City Hall, Annex and Spares General Fund  $14,425.00 
Fire Department  General Fund    21,670.00 
Street Department  Street/Sanitation Fund     3,231.00 
Water Department  Water Fund    57,445.00 
Total       $96,771.00 

 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: To advertise the City's intent to make a sole source procurement 
following a 14-day period, as per I.C. § 67-2808, and then to issue a purchase order for Schlage 
brand name locks, cylinders, keys and electrified access control products in the amount of 
$96,771.00 (or take other action deemed appropriate). 
 
2) Bid IF-16-K, Hot Asphalt Plant Mix: It is the recommendation of the Public Works and the 
Municipal Services Departments to piggyback the Idaho Department of Transportation's contract 
#ITB16000705 with H-K Contractors, Inc. to furnish the required annual Bituminous (Hot Asphalt) 
Plant Mix ($44.95 per ton of 3/4" and 1/2" hot mix and $49.95 per ton of 3/8" Hot Mix). For the 
contract period of July 1, 2015, through June 30, 2016, the Street Division ordered 1,921.43 tons of 
hot mix totaling $96,170.50.  Funding to purchase the supplies are included in the Public Works 
2015/16 and 2016/17 operating budgets. 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: To piggyback the Idaho Department of Transportation's contract with 
H-K Contractors to furnish the required annual Hot Asphalt Plant Mix for an amount totaling 
$96,170.50 (or take other action deemed appropriate). 

 
3) Bid Award IF-16-034-City Hall ADA Door:  It is the recommendation of the Municipal Services 
Department to accept the lowest responsive, responsible bid from River's West Construction, Inc. 
in the amount of $23,848.00. This amount includes the required payment and performance bonds 
amount. This project will remodel the City Hall west entrance to allow for ADA access. Funding for 
this project will be from the 2015/16 Municipal Services General Services General Building Repair 
and Maintenance operating budget. 

 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: To accept the lowest responsive, responsible bid from River's West 
Construction, Inc. in the amount of $23,848.00, to remodel the City Hall west entrance to allow for 
ADA access, and authorize the Mayor and City Clerk to sign any necessary documents (or take 
other action deemed appropriate). 
 
 
 



 
 

Page 3 of 7 

 

B. Public Works 
 

1) Bid Award – Well 18 Production Well:  On June 21, 2016, bids were received and opened for 
the Well 18 Production Well project. Public Works recommends approval of the plans and 
specifications, award to the lowest responsive, responsible bidder, O’Keefe Drilling Company, Inc., 
in an amount of $171,577.00.  

 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: To approve of the plans and specifications, award to the lowest 
responsive, responsible bidder, O’Keefe Drilling Company, Inc., an amount of $171,577.00 for the 
Well 18 Production Well project, and, give authorization for the Mayor and City Clerk to sign 
contract documents (or take other action deemed appropriate). 
 
2) Bid Award – Well 19 Drilling: On June 21, 2016, bids were received and opened for the Well 
19 Drilling project. Public Works recommends approval of the plans and specifications, award to 
the lowest responsive, responsible bidder, O’Keefe Drilling Company, Inc., in an amount of 
$188,551.00. 

 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: To approve of the plans and specifications, award to the lowest 
responsive, responsible bidder, O’Keefe Drilling Company, Inc., an amount of $188,551.00 for the 
Well 19 Drilling project, and, give authorization for the Mayor and City Clerk to sign contract 
documents (or take other action deemed appropriate). 
 
3) Bid Award – Water Meter Installation – 2016: On July 6, 2016, bids were received and opened 
for the Water Meter Installation – 2016 project. Public Works recommends approval of the plans 
and specifications, award to the lowest responsive, responsible bidder, 3H Construction LLC, in an 
amount of $160,896.00. 

 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: To approve of the plans and specifications, award to the lowest 
responsive, responsible bidder, 3H Construction LLC, an amount of $160,896.00 for the Water 
Meter Installation – 2016 project, and, give authorization for the Mayor and City Clerk to sign 
contract documents (or take other action deemed appropriate). 

 
4)  Professional Service Agreements (2) for Materials Testing with Strata:  For consideration are 
two (2) Professional Service Agreements for materials testing with Strata. The agreements, if 
approved, will be used by the Street and Water Divisions to ensure that construction within the 
public right-of-way adheres to City standards. These agreements have been reviewed by the City 
Attorney.   

 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: To approve of the Professional Service Agreements for materials 
testing with Strata, and, give authorization for the Mayor and City Clerk to sign contract 
documents (or take other action deemed appropriate). 
 
5) Professional Services Agreement for North Capital Avenue and Elm Street Road Safety Audit:  
For consideration is a Professional Services Agreements for engineering services on the North 
Capital Avenue and Elm Street Road Safety Audit with Precision Engineering. Under the 
agreement, Precision Engineering will provide engineering services as necessary for a not-to-
exceed amount of $35,800.00. The City will be responsible for $2,627.72, which is 7.34% of this 
amount. This agreement has been reviewed by the City Attorney.   

 



 
 

Page 4 of 7 

 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: To approve of the Professional Services Agreement for engineering 
services with Precision Engineering, and, give authorization for the Mayor and City Clerk to sign 
contract documents (or take other action deemed appropriate). 

  
C. Parks and Recreation 

 
1) Change Order #1 Rock Solid Landscape Design and Construction: On July 2, 2015, a bid was 
awarded to Rock Solid Landscaping Design and Construction for construction of the Wayfinding 
Monument Sign. Due to design changes and additional services performed beyond the original 
scope of work, the Department of Parks and Recreation respectfully requests an increase in the 
contract amount of $35.396.37 bringing the original award of $79,583.00 to a total of $114,979.37, 
and requests authorization for the Mayor and City Clerk to accept the executed contract as 
written. 

 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:  To approve Change Order #1 to Rock Solid Landscaping Design and 
Construction in an amount of $35.396.37, and authorize the Mayor and City Clerk to accept the 
executed contract as written (or take other action deemed appropriate).  
 

D. Idaho Falls Power 
 

1) Ordinance Amending Sections of the City Code of Idaho Falls Pertaining to the Public Fiber 
Optic Network:  For consideration is an Ordinance amending sections of the City Code of Idaho 
Falls pertaining to the Public Fiber Optic Network. Following staff recommendations, the ordinance 
amending Title 8, Chapter 13 was prepared by the City Attorney's office. The proposed changes 
seek to clarify provisions associated with amortizing extension costs and the methodology for cost 
recovery. 

 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: To approve the Ordinance amending City Code Title 8, Chapter 13, 
pertaining to the Public Fiber Optic Network under the suspension of the rules requiring three 
complete and separate readings and that it be read by title and published by summary (or consider 
the Ordinance on the first reading and that it be read by title, or reject the Ordinance). 

 
2) Resolution to Reserve Fiber Pairs for Economic Development Projects in the City of Idaho 
Falls:  For consideration is a resolution reserving three (3) unused, dedicated fiber pairs from the 
City's dark fiber optic network for economic development projects in the City of Idaho Falls. 

 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:  To approve the Resolution to reserve three (3) unused, dedicated fiber 
pairs for economic development projects in the City of Idaho Falls, and authorize the Mayor to sign 
the document (or take other action deemed appropriate). 

 
E. Idaho Falls Airport 

 
1) Acceptance of Federal Aviation Administration (FAA) Grant Offer AIP Project No. 3-16-0018-
041-2016:  For your consideration is FAA Grant Offer AIP No. 3-16-0018-041-2016 in the amount of 
$1,064,269.00 for the Design Phase of the Rehabilitation of Taxiway A and C, Runway 2/20 and 
North Terminal Expansion projects. This grant represents 93.75% of FAA eligible costs, with the 
remaining costs funded by Airport budgeted resources. The Airport Department respectfully 
requests acceptance and authorization for the Mayor and City Attorney to execute said 
documents. 



 
 

Page 5 of 7 

 

RECOMMENDED ACTION:  To accept FAA Grant Offer AIP No. 3-16-0018-041-2016 in the amount 
of $1,064,269.00 for the Design Phase of the Rehabilitation of Taxiway A and C, Runway 2/20 and 
North Terminal Expansion projects, and give authorization for the Mayor and City Attorney to 
execute said documents (or take other action deemed appropriate).  
 

F. Police Department 
 

1) Dog Control Ordinance:  For consideration is an amendment to the Dog Control Ordinance. 
The Dog Control Ordinance has references to kennels as a place; which is in conflict with current 
zoning ordinances. Zoning ordinance defines kennels as a use. To address this conflict, staff 
recommends replacing the City’s current kennel licensing with an additional dog permit. The 
amendment also provides for procedural due process to appeal a denial of an additional dog 
permit. The City Attorney has drafted an amendment to City Ordinance Title 5, Chapter 2. 

 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:  To approve the Ordinance amending City Code Title 5, Chapter 2, Dog 
Control Ordinance, under the suspension of the rules requiring three complete and separate 
readings and that it be read by title and published by summary (or consider the Ordinance on the 
first reading and that it be read by title, or reject the Ordinance). 

 
G. Community Development Services  

 
1) Request for Waiver of Electric Line Extension Fees, Lorin C. Anderson, Division No. 1, 3rd 
Amended:  For consideration is a request for waiver of electric line extension fees for the project 
at Lorin C. Anderson, Division No. 1, 3rd Amended.  The total fees are $51,000.  This request is 
made pursuant to City Code 8-5-31 which states, "Council reserves the right to waive or adjust fees 
(other than net metering fees) upon a finding of good cause to do so where such waiver or 
reduction supports redevelopment or the annexation of property contiguous with or surrounded 
by the City." This site is surrounded by City development and is near the core of the City rather 
than on the fringes.  Sewer and water facilities are adjacent to the site.  Because the site is a 
greenfield, or not previously developed, significant electrical infrastructure is required to support 
the development. Idaho Falls Power and Community Development staff are therefore 
recommending a waiver of the labor portion of the fee which totals $12,750. 

 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:  To waive the labor portion of electric line extension fees in the amount 
of $12,750 for the project at Lorin C. Anderson, Division No. 1, 3rd Amended (or take other action 
deemed appropriate).  

 
2) Extension to Record a Final Plat, Lorin C. Anderson, Division No. 1, 3rd Amended:  For 
consideration is a request to extend the deadline for recording a plat for Lorin C. Anderson, 
Division No. 1, 3rd Amended. The City Council approved the plat on March 24, 2016, and the 
Subdivision Ordinance requires that the plat be recorded within 90 days of approval or the Council 
may rescind its approval.  The applicant is prepared to record the plat immediately following the 
granting of an extension.  Staff recommends approval of the request to extend the deadline to 
record the plat an additional 90 days. 

 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:  To approve the request to extend the deadline for recording a final plat 
for Lorin C. Anderson, Division No. 1, 3rd Amended, for an additional 90 days (or take other action 
deemed appropriate).  
 



 
 

Page 6 of 7 

 

3) Extension to Record a Final Plat, Hollipark Addition, Division No. 3:  For consideration is a 
request to extend the deadline for recording a plat for Hollipark Addition, Division No. 3. The City 
Council approved the plat on September 11, 2014, and the Subdivision Ordinance requires that the 
plat be recorded within 90 days of approval or the Council may rescind its approval. The delay in 
recording the plat was due to unforeseen issues with securing access easements. Staff required 
the applicant to resubmit the plat for review to ensure it still complies with all current 
requirements. The plat still complies and the applicant is prepared to record the plat immediately 
following the granting of an extension. Staff recommends approval of the request to extend the 
deadline to record the plat an additional 90 days. 

RECOMMENDED ACTION:  To approve the request to extend the deadline for recording a final plat 
for Hollipark Addition, Division No. 3, for an additional 90 days (or take other action deemed 
appropriate). 

 
4) Public Hearing – Annexation and Initial Zoning of HC-1, Annexation Ordinance, Zoning 
Ordinance, and Reasoned Statements of Relevant Criteria and Standards, M&B: 55.416 Acres, 
Sections 26, 27, 34, and 35, T 2N, R 37E (Jackson Hole Junction): For consideration is the 
application for Annexation and Initial Zoning of HC-1, Annexation Ordinance, Zoning Ordinance, 
and Reasoned Statements of Relevant Criteria and Standards, M&B: 55.416 Acres, Sections 26, 27, 
34, and 35, T 2N, R 37E (Jackson Hole Junction).  The Planning and Zoning Commission considered 
this application at its June 7, 2016 meeting and recommended approval by unanimous vote.  Staff 
concurs with this recommendation. 

 
RECOMMENDATION ACTIONS: (in sequential order) 

   
a. To approve the Ordinance annexing Jackson Hole Junction, under the suspension of the 

rules requiring three complete and separate readings and that it be read by title and 
published by summary (or consider the Ordinance on the first reading and that it be read 
by title, or reject the Ordinance). 

 
b. To approve the Reasoned Statement of Relevant Criteria and Standards for the annexation 

for Jackson Hole Junction, and give authorization for the Mayor to execute the necessary 
documents. 

 
c. To approve the Ordinance assigning a Comprehensive Plan Designation of Commercial and 

establishing the initial zoning for Jackson Hole Junction as HC-1 (Highway Commercial), 
under the suspension of the rules requiring three complete and separate readings and that 
it be read by title and published by summary (or consider the Ordinance on the first 
reading and that it be read by title, or reject the Ordinance), that the Comprehensive Plan 
be amended to include the area annexed herewith, and that the City Planner be instructed 
to reflect said annexation, zoning, and amendment to the Comprehensive Plan on the 
Comprehensive Plan and Zoning Maps located in the Planning Office. 

 
d. To approve the Reasoned Statement of Relevant Criteria and Standards for the Initial 

Zoning of HC-1 Commercial for Jackson Hole Junction, and give authorization for the 
Mayor to execute the necessary documents. 

 
5) Public Hearing – Conditional Use Permit and Reasoned Statement of Relevant Criteria and 
Standards, Third Ward Medical Office, 187 E. 13th Street:  For consideration is the application for 



 
 

Page 7 of 7 

 

a Conditional Use Permit and Reasoned Statement of Relevant Criteria and Standards, Third Ward 
Medical Offices, 187 E. 13th Street. The Planning and Zoning Commission considered this 
application at its June 7, 2016 meeting and recommended approval by unanimous vote.  Staff 
concurs with this recommendation. 

 
RECOMMENDATION ACTIONS: (in sequential order) 

   
a. To approve the Conditional Use Permit for Third Ward Medical Offices, 187 E. 13th Street.  

 
b. To approve the Reasoned Statement of Relevant Criteria and Standards for the Conditional 

Use Permit for Third Ward Medical Offices, 187 E. 13th Street, and give authorization for 
the Mayor to execute the necessary documents. 

 
6. Motion to Adjourn. 



































htr605          7/07/2016 City of Idaho Falls
Expenditure Summary

From  6/01/2016 To  6/30/2016
------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

Total
Fund Expenditure

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

General Fund 1,029,126.40

Street Fund 80,560.11

Recreation Fund 92,593.69

Library Fund 24,475.49

MERF Fund 267,115.87

EL Public Purpose Fund                          66,448.62

Golf Fund 85,855.76

Self-Insurance Fund                             42,488.65

Municipal Capital Imp F                         22,966.00

Street Capital Imp Fund                         23,881.79

Traffic Light Cap Imp F                         37,460.99

Airport Fund 809,185.10

Water & Sewer Fund                           1,052,961.50

Sanitation Fund 4,509.73

Ambulance Fund 44,904.28

Electric Light Fund                          4,070,859.47

Payroll Liability Fund                       1,827,958.88

9,583,352.33



1 of 3



June 2016 Treasurer's Report.xls

CITY OF IDAHO FALLS MONTHLY TREASURER'S REPORT

KENNETH MCOMBER  TREASURER

JUNE, 2016

BEGINNING BEGINNING TOTAL MATURED JOURNAL TOTAL NEW JOURNAL CASH ON INVESTED ENDING

FUND CASH BALANCE RECEIPTS INVESTMTS DEBIT EXPENSES INVESTS CREDITS HAND FUNDS BALANCE

GENERAL 1,442,820.89 14,447,820.89    1,416,690.00        2,500,000.00    1,432,161.98    3,934,582.85    2,690,000.00    431,971.06        (264,881.04) 13,195,000.00    12,930,118.96    

HEALTH  & ACCIDENT INSUR. 1,487,573.43      2,472,573.43       -                         -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      1,487,573.43    985,000.00          2,472,573.43       

STREET (1,149,120.80) (1,149,120.80) 4,748.51               -                      -                      223,310.86        -                      28,535.49          (1,396,218.64) -                        (1,396,218.64)

RECREATION 146,386.09 146,386.09          123,609.68           -                      -                      179,429.88        -                      16,952.76          73,613.13 -                        73,613.13            

LIBRARY 179,246.13 1,279,246.13       83,016.56             500,000.00        -                      152,948.00        500,000.00        13,974.42          95,340.27 1,100,000.00       1,195,340.27       

AIRPORT PFC FUND 35,449.87           35,449.87            59,413.24             -                      -                      -                      -                      35,449.87          59,413.24          -                        59,413.24            

MUNICIPAL EQUIP. REPLCMT. 1,062,168.28      15,504,688.38    25,289.67             3,112,384.56    339,367.00        301,223.87        2,905,362.48    -                      1,332,623.16    14,235,498.02    15,568,121.18    

EL. LT. WEATHERIZATION FD 241,936.47         2,241,936.47       230,222.85           500,000.00        -                      66,489.14          700,000.00        85.00                 205,585.18        2,200,000.00       2,405,585.18       

BUSINESS IMPRV. DISTRICT 72,985.29           72,985.29            36,383.70             -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      109,368.99        -                        109,368.99          

IFP RATE STABILIZATION FD 40,295.83 18,323,986.06    -                         -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      40,295.83 13,783,690.23    13,823,986.06    

IFP CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT 250,000.00         16,264,728.64    25,168.46             6,500,000.00    -                      -                      2,000,000.00    3,700,000.00    1,075,168.46    16,014,728.64    17,089,897.10    

GOLF (310,484.50) (310,484.50) 282,681.78           -                      -                      211,512.86        -                      49,371.70          (288,687.28) -                        (288,687.28)

GOLF CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT 176,028.76         176,028.76          -                         -                      7,253.77            -                      -                      -                      183,282.53        -                        183,282.53          

SELF-INSURANCE FD. 215,818.74         2,015,818.74       1,792.89               800,000.00        -                      42,488.65          500,000.00        -                      475,122.98        1,500,000.00       1,975,122.98       

SANITARY SEWER CAP IMP. 336,853.25         1,136,853.25       21,274.16             200,000.00        -                      -                      200,000.00        -                      358,127.41        800,000.00          1,158,127.41       

MUNICIPAL CAPITAL IMP. 241,438.06         841,438.06          23,040.27             100,000.00        -                      22,966.00          100,000.00        -                      241,512.33        600,000.00          841,512.33          

STREET CAPITAL IMPRV. 230,158.03 230,158.03 -                         -                      -                      23,881.79          -                      -                      206,276.24 -                        206,276.24

BRIDGE & ARTERIAL STREET 238,013.86         238,013.86          4,057.51               -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      242,071.37        -                        242,071.37          

WATER CAPITAL IMPR. 217,978.50         2,417,978.50       26,464.47             700,000.00        -                      -                      500,000.00        -                      444,442.97        2,000,000.00       2,444,442.97       

SURFACE DRAINAGE 88,556.11           88,556.11            1,449.03               -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      90,005.14          -                        90,005.14            

TRAFFIC LIGHT CAPITAL IMPRV. 289,095.45         1,289,095.45       122,590.96           200,000.00        34,096.00          37,460.99          200,000.00        -                      408,321.42        1,000,000.00       1,408,321.42       

PARKS CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT 85,994.97           85,994.97            16,175.00             -                      51,254.29          -                      -                      -                      153,424.26        -                        153,424.26          

AIRPORT 569,376.69         3,469,376.69       321,533.62           1,300,000.00    -                      902,309.62        800,000.00        44,485.42          444,115.27        2,400,000.00       2,844,115.27       

WATER & SEWER 1,021,040.57      29,195,040.57    1,636,510.20        5,000,000.00    -                      1,378,134.05    5,900,000.00    358,104.39        21,312.33          29,074,000.00    29,095,312.33    

W & S  EQUIPMENT REPLACE 409,108.93         1,004,108.93       -                         -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      409,108.93        595,000.00          1,004,108.93       

W & S SANITARY INTERCPT 238,061.30         738,061.30          -                         -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      238,061.30        500,000.00          738,061.30          

SANITATION 541,451.42 1,241,451.42       381,592.43           -                      -                      157,132.22        200,000.00        122,601.44        443,310.19 900,000.00          1,343,310.19       

AMBULANCE 529,337.06 529,337.06 205,230.88           -                      -                      359,283.74        -                      98,369.78          276,914.42 -                        276,914.42

ELECTRIC LIGHT 1,231,949.97      8,671,393.00       4,204,569.05        800,000.00        3,700,000.00    4,720,141.41    1,000,000.00    663,565.91        3,552,811.70    7,639,443.03       11,192,254.73    

PAYROLL FUND 58,190.87           58,190.87            4,732,742.84        -                      7,600.00            3,876,227.39    -                      -                      922,306.32        -                        922,306.32          

CLAIMS FUND -                       -                        5,342,415.03        -                      -                      5,342,415.03    -                      -                      -                      -                        -                        

    TOTAL  ALL FUNDS 10,217,709.52    122,757,091.52  19,328,662.79     22,212,384.56  5,571,733.04    21,931,938.35  18,195,362.48  5,563,467.24    11,639,721.84  108,522,359.92  120,162,081.76  

2 of 3



June 2016 Treasurer's Report.xls

CITY OF IDAHO FALLS  MONTHLY TREASURER'S REPORT   

CASH AND INVESTMENT REPORT

Jun-16

        DISTRIBUTION OF CASH INVESTMENTS

       CASH AND TRUST ACCOUNTS TIME TO MATURITY

INSTITUTION AMOUNT INVESTMENT TYPE 1-30 DAYS 31-90 DAYS 91-180 DAYS OVER 180 DAYS TOTAL

 BPA Loan Imprest  (BICLI) $113,129.85  Certificate of Deposit $490,000.00 4,060,000.00       3,490,000.00       7,260,000.00       $15,300,000.00

 El. Lt. Imprest (BIELI) $105,595.73

 Refund Acct. (BIRFD) $107,141.89  U.S. Securities $5,000,000.00 $348,000.00 $0.00 $3,000,000.00 $8,348,000.00

 Wells Fargo Bank $4,829,722.22

 Petty Cash $14,740.00  Commercial Paper 5,985,843.33       28,323,697.89     9,973,555.56       $0.00 $44,283,096.78

 US Bank  (US) $4,568,959.30

 US Bank Payroll (USPAY) $882,531.15 Corporate Bonds $0.00 6,078,000.00       3,584,000.00       30,929,263.14     $40,591,263.14

 Wells Fargo Bank (WELLS) $1,010,233.61

 Key Bank $7,668.09

 TOTAL $11,475,843.33 $38,809,697.89 $17,047,555.56 $41,189,263.14 $108,522,359.92

TOTAL $11,639,721.84

3 of 3



MAY 26, 2016 

 

1 
 

The City Council of the City of Idaho Falls met in Special Council Meeting (Idaho Falls Power Board Meeting), 
Thursday, May 26, 2016, at the Idaho Falls Power Conference Room, located at 140 S. Capital Avenue in Idaho 
Falls, Idaho at 8:00 a.m. 
 
There were present: 
Mayor Rebecca Casper 
Councilmember Thomas Hally (departed at 10:43) 
Councilmember David Smith 
Councilmember Michelle Ziel-Dingman 
Councilmember Barbara Ehardt  
Councilmember Ed Marohn  
Councilmember John Radford 
 
Also present: 
Jackie Flowers, Idaho Falls Power Director 
Bear Prairie, Idaho Falls Power Assistant Director  
Randy Fife, City Attorney  
Kathy Hampton, City Clerk 
 
Mayor Casper called the meeting to order at 8:00 a.m. and turned the meeting to Director Flowers with the 
following agenda items, with general discussion throughout: 
 
Idaho Falls Power 2016 Q2 Quarterly Report and Power Forecast: 
 
Director Flowers expressed her appreciation to Barb Sanderson – Senior Accountant, Stacy Scott – Accountant II, 
and Assistant Director Prairie for their hard work and assistance with the budget reports. She presented the 
following information regarding FY16 Q2: 

 Revenues collected are at 49% of projected budget 
o Residential – 56% 
o Industrial – 52.6%  
o Commercial – 43% 
o Power – Bonneville Power Administration (BPA) 43.5%, surplus 86% 

 Expenses were at 50.1% of budget 
 Rate Stabilization Fund (RSF) balance is consistent to ten (10) years ago, surplus power sales 

continue to build capital fund 
o RSF is at target of $20 million with fluctuation occurring as Power Cost Adjustment (PCA) 

use is intended. Adjustment will reflect decline in revenues associated with power supply.  
Final adjustments to the RSF are anticipated to occur prior to budget year end to reflect 
draws from the Electric Light Fund (ELF) used to stabilize revenues due to poor water and 
market conditions. 

o Capital Fund at $15 million budget with expenditures in progress and not yet transferred. 
Q3 will see true up transfer from Transmission & Distribution (T&D) for North Loop 
expenses. 

o Electric Light Fund (ELF) at $4 million mark, prompting transfer from T&D. Q3 saw a 
$750,000 transfer to Municipal Equipment Replacement Fund (MERF) balance (based on 
extending life expectancy from 10 years to 15 years).  

 
Assistant Director Prairie presented the following information regarding FYQ2 Power Supply: 

 Q2 Net Power Supply cost = +16% from previous – $1,237,589 
o Expenses were up $80,255 
o Revenues were down $1,190,156 ($250,000 for bulb sales) 
o 43,986 MWh less sales and prices down $2.93 on average 



MAY 26, 2016 

 

2 
 

o Gem State & Bulb Generation was 47% lower than previous year 
 47.54% of total budget 

 
He stated Heavy Load and Light Load prices have slightly increased, June and July saw more change due to early 
run-off. Water outlook indicates above normal precipitation for March, all reservoirs should fill this year.  
 
Circa 2016 Q2 Quarterly Report: 
 
Director Flowers presented the following information: 

 Revenues at 54.6% of budget 
 Expenses at 87.7% of budget (due to construction work orders, billable) 
 Service providers are leasing 14 pairs for 336 drops, private businesses are leasing 11 pairs for 66 

drops (Ordinance states maximum pair for provider to lease is six (6)) 
 Original loan was paid in full in December of 2015, loan balance will slightly fluctuate as money 

flows fluctuate due to extension requests and amortized costs. 
 
Bulb Turbine Contract with BPA: 
 
Assistant Director Prairie presented the following information: 
 

 Bulb Turbines 
o Contract term: 9/30/2011 – 9/30/2021 
o Five (5) year price renegotiation/five (5) year fixed price 
o 2011-2016 collar - $30.50 floor, $55.50 ceiling 
o 2017-2021 Price: Negotiating 

 2016 versus 2010 
 Wholesale prices have dropped substantially  
 Retail sales are flat to declining 
 Energy Imbalance Market (EIM) 
 General Transfer Agreement (GTA) termination  
 PacifiCorp (PAC) transmission rates increasing 

 Negotiations with BPA 
o Fixed flat price per MWh (belief that fixed price adds stability) 
o Index price with collar again - $21.00 floor, $31.00 ceiling 
o Options 

 Negotiate the best deal possible 
 Bring bulb output to serve IFP load, decrementing our Tier 1 from BPA 

 
He reviewed analysis of 5-year totals including value of Tier 1 reduction of 14.724% (which does not equal actual 
bulb generation due to fluctuation of water years), value of selling bulbs to BPA (at $23.55) and extreme case at 
$31.00 per MWh. Assistant Director Prairie believes in all scenarios it is better value to bring bulbs back to IFP 
load and reduce our Tier 1 BPA expense. The cost of BPA power continues to rise and wholesale prices that BPA 
would pay for the generation is low. IFP recommendation is to terminate negotiations with BPA for the sale of the 
bulb turbine output. After brief discussion it was decided by Councilmembers to proceed with recommendations 
from IFP staff. This item will be presented for approval at the June 6, 2016, Work Session. 
 
Budget: 
 
Director Flowers indicated IFP is continuing to work on the final budget with regard to revenues and power supply. 
Capital will be slightly adjusted to reflect softened demand. Energy efficiency focus is being adjusted to ease off 
commercial lighting to ease drop in retail sales. She reviewed the Payment in Lieu of Taxes (PILOT) impact, 



MAY 26, 2016 

 

3 
 

stating a decrease in revenues would result in $850,000 less cash transfer to the General Fund. More reserves would 
be available if all in-kind/specialty payments were removed, actual amounts will be based on a three (3)-year 
average. Director Flowers presented a formula modification to remove the remaining variability in the calculation.  
Gross revenues from the latest closed fiscal year will be used for the overall benchmark formula.  This will shield 
the calculation from worst case projections in terms of water year, retail sales, wholesale pricing and instead 
provide certainty as the number is a firm number.  Additionally, it will better align with the date range of the APPA 
benchmark document. 
 
BPA Power Sales Contract: 
 
Assistant Director Prairie reviewed Section 11 of the BPA Contract – “by May 31, 2016, Idaho Falls may provide 
written notice to BPA that it is requesting to change is purchase obligation effective October 1, 2019”. He stated 
this is only a notice of intent and BPA has a deadline of July 31, 2016, to accept/deny/defer. By August 31, 2016, 
BPA will notify the customer (IFP) of any costs which then starts a 30-day timeframe for IFP to accept or stay with 
slice. He reviewed the slice-water routing model and product options for continuing with slice. He stated alternative 
product options include load following, flat block, diurnal block, shaped block, and any block/add shaping capacity. 
He believes the only two (2) other options for change which would be load following and shaped block with 
shaping capacity. He compared the products as follows: 

 Slice/Block – Cost Categories 
o Composite cost pool 
o Non-slice cost pool (block only) 
o Slice cost pool 
o The Energy Authority (TEA) software 
o Utah Associated Municipal Power Systems (UAMPS) scheduling fee  
o IFP staff and expertise to manage hydro risk 

 Load Following (not recommended as IFP has its own resources)– Cost Categories 
o Composite cost pool 
o Non-slice cost pool 
o Load shaping charges 
o Demand charges 
o Resource Support Services 

 Block with Shaping – Cost Categories 
o Composite cost pool 
o Non-slice cost pool 
o UAMPS scheduling fee/reduced though from Slice 
o IFP staff and expertise to manage scheduling and marketing 

 Cost comparison: Slice Cost 2016 - $24,698,369; Block with Shaping 2016 - $23,854,986 
 
Assistant Director Prairie’s recommendation is to give notice of intent to change product from Slice to Block with 
Shaping. Analysis for final determination will be continued. 
 
Transmission to South Idaho and Energy Imbalance Market: 
 
Assistant Director Prairie presented the following information: 
 

 Transmission 
o South Idaho Load Service (SILS) 

 BPA network transmission customer 
 IFP is unique – we are also network with UAMPS 

o GTA 
 Historic agreement between PAC and BPA 
 Five (5) year notice to terminate 



MAY 26, 2016 

 

4 
 

 Terminates on July 1, 2016 
 Simply an energy swap after the fact 
 Pre Open Access agreement 

o Who was affected 
 All BPA customers in PAC East’s Balancing Authority (BA), including Idaho 

Falls, Fall River, Lower Valley, Salmon River Electric, Soda Springs 
 How will BPA serve us? 

 Open Access Transmission Tariff, BPA now standard network customer of 
PAC 

 Point to Point service through Idaho Power Company 
 AMPS line and litigation – beneficial for BPA to serve IFP and other 

Eastern Idaho preference customers 
 Market Purchases 

o Changes for Idaho Falls 
 Actual schedules with E-tags 
 Bulbs still behind meter but now scheduled with BPA 
 Storage agreements 
 IFP will be scheduling in new BPA online portal 
 Slice in scheduling timelines are problematic 

 Energy Imbalance Market  
o History with organized markets in Western Electricity Coordinating Council (WECC) 
o EIM – Sub hourly market 
o Expansion of the California Independent System Operator (CAISO) 
o Uses full network model 
o Balances load and resources – wide footprint 
o More efficient dispatch – low cost resource 
o Transmission – scheduling and payments 

 
EIM footprint is most of California and currently PacifiCorp’s service area (including Idaho Falls) but is continuing 
to expand. Prior to each market run the EIM will automatically assess the entire footprint and determine the most 
effective dispatch of forecasts, outages, resource scheduling, economic bids, dynamic contingencies, and 
interchange schedules.  
 
Logo: 
 
Director Flowers presented several draft concepts from Hunt Design for IFP and the Circa logo. She is anticipating 
the updated logos can be completed to coincide with the timing of the updated utility statements beginning in July, 
2016. After brief discussion, it was decided use of ‘Idaho Falls Fiber’ was preferred over ‘Circa’.  
 
There being no further business, it moved by Councilmember Smith, seconded by Councilmember Marohn, that the 
meeting adjourn at 11:33 a.m., which passed following a unanimous vote. 
 
 
               
  CITY CLERK         MAYOR 
 
 
 



JUNE 6, 2016 

 

1 
 

The City Council of the City of Idaho Falls met in Special Council Meeting (Council Work Session), Monday, June 
6, 2016, at the City Council Chambers in the City Annex Building located at 680 Park Avenue in Idaho Falls, Idaho 
at 3:00 p.m. 
 
There were present: 
Mayor Rebecca L. Noah Casper 
Councilmember Michelle Ziel-Dingman  
Councilmember Ed Marohn 
Councilmember Barbara Ehardt  
Councilmember Thomas Hally  
Councilmember John B. Radford 
 
Absent: 
Councilmember David M. Smith  
 
Also present: 
Kerry McCullough, Public Information Officer 
Bear Prairie, Idaho Falls Power Assistant Director 
Craig Davis, Idaho Falls Airport Director 
Dave Hanneman, Fire Chief 
Randy Fife, City Attorney 
Michael Kirkham, Assistant City Attorney 
Greg Weitzel, Parks and Recreation Director 
Brent Martin, Parks Superintendent 
Ronnie Campbell, Parks Foreman 
Chris Fredericksen, Public Works Director 
Kent Fugal, City Engineer 
Chris Canfield, Public Works Assistant Director 
Kathy Hampton, City Clerk 
 
Mayor Casper called the meeting to order at 3:03 p.m. with the following: 
 
Mayor’s Report and Action Items: 
 
Mayor Casper stated the Councilmembers will now be receiving minutes from various committees/boards for 
information purposes. The budget process has begun with all departments, it is anticipated to have a draft budget 
for Council review on June 29. The American Public Power Association (APPA) meetings will be held the week of 
June 13, 2016, Idaho Falls Power Director Jackie Flowers and Mayor Casper will be attending. The two (2) current 
Citizen Review Committees (CRC), Legal Department and Fire Department, have concluded their regular meetings 
and will be presenting their reports later in the year. Fluor has nominated the Idaho Falls Zoo at Tautphaus Park as 
a potential STEM (Science, Technology, Engineering and Math) project which would include a $10,000 grant. 
First-year report data regarding SAUSA (Special Assistant United States Attorney) will be distributed to 
Councilmembers. The Human Resources (HR) position has closed, interviews will be scheduled in the near future. 
 
Other Announcements and Calendar Items: 
 
Idaho Falls Fire Department open house for new recruits, June 10; Fire Ops, June 11 
Clean & Green Volunteer Day, June 13 
Council Work Session 3:00pm and Council Meeting 7:30pm, June 20 – Council President Hally will be conducting  
Association of Idaho (AIC) Conference, June 22-24 in Boise, including an Economic Development track 
Parks Master Planning Meeting, June 29, Ice Arena  
Idaho Falls Power (IFP) Board Meeting, June 30 



JUNE 6, 2016 

 

2 
 

City Council Reports: 
 
Councilmember Hally stated the recent stock car races at Idaho Falls Raceway at Noise Park were completely sold 
out, discussion is occurring for additional bleachers. The Home Owners Association of St. Clair estates is installing 
a fence surrounding the retention pond in their area. The Idaho Falls Zoo at Tautphaus Park as well as Movies in 
the Park have been well attended.  
Council Marohn stated he, along with Brad Cramer, Community Development Services Director, will be 
conducting an Economic Seminar at the upcoming AIC Annual Conference.  
Councilmember Ehardt expressed her appreciation to those in attendance at the Memorial Day Field of Honor 
events. She stated she and Director Fredericksen are following up with citizen concerns regarding the Hitt 
Road/17th Street intersection.  
Councilmember Dingman stated applications are currently being accepted for the 42nd session of the Citizens Police 
Academy (CPA), which will begin in August, 2016.  
Councilmember Radford stated the Idaho Falls Fire Department is currently accepting applications. He encouraged 
the Councilmembers to attend the Fire Ops.  
 
Idaho Falls Power (IFP) presented the following item: 
 
Ratification of Power Supply Notification to Bonneville Power Administration (BPA): 
 
Assistant Director Prairie stated per previous discussion at the May 26, 2016, IFP Board Meeting, the current bulb 
turbine contract is a ten (10) year contract with a five (5) year break in price for renegotiation of new price. If there 
is no action on behalf of IFP, the contract terminates by default September 30, 2016. Notice was given to BPA 
concerning the price negotiation on the sale of the output of the bulb turbines for an additional five (5) years. IFP 
has been engaged in good faith negotiations with BPA for the past three (3) months to continue the power sale. IFP 
finds it economically beneficial and of lower economic risk to no longer sell the output to BPA. Under any market 
price and hydrological scenario analyzed it was cost effective to use this generation to serve our community 
directly. Assistant Director Prairie stated BPA appreciated the notification from IFP. The majority of the power 
supply will continue with BPA and as load growth and economic expansion continues, there will be opportunity to 
purchase additional power supply from BPA. After brief discussion, it was moved by Councilmember Marohn, 
seconded by Councilmember Hally, to ratify the power supply notification to Bonneville Power Administration. 
Roll call as follows: Aye – Councilmembers Marohn, Dingman, Ehardt, Hally, Radford. Nay – none. Motion 
carried.  
 
Idaho Falls Airport presented the following item: 
 
Air Show Funding Discussion: 
 
Mayor Casper stated per Airshow discussion on April 25, 2016, an array of costs was discussed to assist with the 
Blue Thunder Airshow. Director Davis was requested to collaborate with department directors as well as the 
Airshow committee for any possible reduction in costs. Director Davis presented the following amounts: 
 

Department Original Amount Reduced Amount 
Police $82,264 $49,367 – Meets the staffing requested by Air Show board 
Fire $31,000 $15,500 – In addition, the Airport will have 24/7 ARFF coverage in 2017 
Public Works $21,012 $21,012 – Remained the same as the level was deemed appropriate 
Airport $40,250 $0 – The Air Show board has absorbed most of the Airport’s anticipated 

costs, any operational costs will be absorbed by Enterprise Funds 
Total Request $174,526 $85,879 

 
Chief Hanneman stated although the Airshow committee is willing to pay $15,500, the Fire Department cost will 
remain the same in order to provide adequate services for any potential incidents and public safety. Councilmember 
Hally stated the previous airshow, held in 2010, was one of the most significant events held by the City that 



JUNE 6, 2016 

 

3 
 

benefited the entire region. Mayor Casper indicated any money allocated for the Airshow would require 
preapproval and then included in the FY2016/2017 budget. She stated the budgeted line item for all community 
donations/grants amounts to approximately $100,000 and the $85,879 (net amount) requested for the Airshow 
could cause a severe impact to other entities requesting donations/grants as there is not a specific line item for this 
particular event.  Russell Johnson, Airshow Committee Chairman, appeared and stated according to the Airshow 
Committee by-laws, any profit received from the Airshow could be donated to any 501(C)3 entity that participates 
in an educational program. Director Davis distributed a draft sponsorship agreement for possible reimbursement by 
the Airshow committee. Brief discussion followed regarding other City-assisted events, including the 4th of July 
activities. Councilmember Marohn indicated these events are economic drivers with community benefits. He 
believes the requested amount for the Airshow should be taken from the fund balance/reserves. Councilmembers 
Hally and Radford concurred. Councilmember Ehardt expressed her concern for the possibility of the Airshow 
committee not reimbursing the City for associated costs. Mr. Fife stated, due to City Ordinance, any monetary 
commitment to the airshow could not be allocated from the current budget expenditures. Mr. Johnson indicated at 
this time only a participation commitment from the City is required, any services/costs would be provided in the 
following year. It was moved by Councilmember Marohn, seconded by Councilmember Hally, to set aside a line 
item for the Airshow in the amount of $101,379 to be included in the FY2016/2017 budget. Roll call as follows: 
Aye – Councilmembers Marohn, Dingman, Hally, Radford. Nay – Councilmember Ehardt. Motion carried. After 
brief discussion, it was decided a sponsorship agreement should be drafted for the Airshow as well as other 
community donations/grants.  
 
Legal Department presented the following items: 
 
Training: Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act (HIPPA) for Elected Officials: 
 
Mr. Kirkham stated HIPPA’s privacy rules cover any information that could be used to personally identify an 
individual by an entity. Elected officials are not entitled to receive any personal information from City staff, such as 
the Fire or Police Departments. Mr. Kirkham recommended the elected officials avoid putting any staff in a 
difficult or awkward position regarding potential violation of the HIPPA Rule. He indicated health information 
received by any media source or a family member is not considered a HIPPA violation.  
 
Public Records Resolution Discussion: 
 
Mr. Kirkham stated a resolution has been drafted regarding a records retention schedule to coincide with the recent 
changes to Idaho Code. This resolution allows for the classification, retention, preservation, and destruction of 
certain records as “historical”, “permanent”, “semipermanent”, and “temporary” records. Mr. Fife stated two (2) 
main changes to Idaho Code include: 1-the allowance of non-paper copies, and 2-emphemera, records that only 
exist for a moment, such as “post-it” notes or “to do” lists. Brief discussion followed. This resolution will be placed 
on the June 9, 2016, Council Meeting agenda for approval to be effective July 1, 2016. 
 
Parks and Recreation presented the following items: 
 
Weed Enforcement Presentation: 
 
Director Weitzel indicated the presentation is for educational purposes for the Councilmembers as the Parks and 
Recreation (P&R) Department receives multiple citizen complaints regarding weed enforcement. He stated one of 
the Parks Division operational activities is Weed and Environmental Control which manages and enforces the 
City’s weed control program as well as responding to resident’s complaints. Weed control provides fire safety, 
pleasing neighborhood aesthetics, street cleanliness, and the reduction of related health issues. Weed Control is also 
responsible for herbicide treatment on public properties including right-of-ways and City property, and operating 
and maintaining Sandy Downs and the Idaho Falls Raceway at Noise Park.  
 



JUNE 6, 2016 

 

4 
 

Mr. Campbell stated the most common complaint regarding weeds is the fire hazard and being unsightly. He 
reviewed the hazards associated with noxious weeks, indicating noxious weeds are located on vacant lots, houses, 
City property such as undeveloped ground, right-of-ways, sidewalks, storm water retention ponds, and other 
properties maintained by the City such as Idaho Transportation Department (ITD) property, Union Pacific property, 
snow dumps, and City parks. The solution to controlling weeds includes public awareness, herbicide applications, 
mechanical means, and Code Enforcement. Director Weitzel reviewed the Weed Control Value Stream process as 
well as City Code 5-8-12 & 5-8-13 and related fees for enforcement. Mr. Campbell stated due to the limitations of 
staff, it is not physically possible to maintain weed control on City property. Director Weitzel indicated weed 
maintenance will be determined by levels of high-area service uses. Brief discussion followed. Citizen complaints 
regarding weeds are as follows: 
 

  FY 2014 FY 2015 FY 2016 
Complaints: 441 545 120 
Notices Sent: 240 417 80 
Enforcements: 20 39 Ongoing 

 
Director Weitzel stated the three (3) full-time weed control employees and 13 seasonal employees, who also assist 
with other Parks Division activities, are responsible to maintain 2,115 acres. He indicated it takes approximately 40 
hours to spray 57 acres and on average it takes two (2) hours per acre for herbicide applications although any spray 
treatment cannot occur with wind speed greater than ten (10) miles per hour. Action plan includes request for the 
FY2016/2017 budget to include one (1) full-time Weed and Environmental Control Maintenance Operator and 
additional one (1) ton pickup truck to be used for snow removal as well.  
 
Cemetery Plots Resolution Discussion: 
 
Director Weitzel stated a resolution has been drafted to coincide with recent protocol changes made by the State 
Legislature to provide for a more efficient distribution of unused cemetery plots. This resolution would establish 
policies and procedures regarding inactivity of such plots for more than fifty (50) years. A provision would be 
included in the resolution upon presentation of a certificate to ownership of plots which may have been reverted to 
the City. Brief discussion followed regarding a reversionary clause. This resolution will be placed on the June 9, 
2016, Council Meeting agenda for approval to be effective July 1, 2016.  
 
Agency Reports: 
 
School District 91 Board of Trustees Discussion and Presentation: 
 
Mayor Casper stated she believes in the importance of dialogue between the elected officials and the school 
officials. She then turned the meeting to the School District 91 Board of Trustees and Administration consisting of: 
Lisa Burtenshaw – Board Chair, Bryan Zollinger – Clerk, Deidre Warden – Vice Chair, Larry Haws – Treasurer, 
Margaret Wimborne – Communications & Community Engagement Coordinator, and George Boland – 
Superintendent. It was noted David Lent, Trustee, was absent.  
 
Mr. Boland stated community conversation took place in January of 2015 with topics addressed as follows: 
 
 -What are knowledge, skills, and attributes that graduates should have? 

-What does learning look like to help acquire knowledge, skills, and attributes?  
-What kind of structures are needed to support that type of learning? (facility structures and schedules) 

 
Mr. Boland reviewed possible options for redesign/remodeling of Skyline and Idaho Falls High Schools, including 
the athletic fields, with general discussion and comments throughout. He stated formal plans and cost scenarios are 
being assembled for future School Board meeting discussion. Further general discussion followed regarding 



JUNE 6, 2016 

 

5 
 

bonding options, a super high school, current land owned by School District 91, parking, utilities, storm pond 
space, and power pole(s) relocation.  
 
Ms. Wimborne stated the School District 91 website includes information regarding this topic and all public 
comments are welcome for future discussion. 
 
There being no further business, it was moved by Councilmember Marohn, seconded by Councilmember Hally, to 
adjourn at 6:10 p.m. which motion passed followed a unanimous vote.  
 
 
               
  CITY CLERK         MAYOR 



JUNE 9, 2016  

1 

 

The City Council of the City of Idaho Falls met in Regular Council Meeting, Thursday, June 9, 2016, in the 
Council Chambers in the City Annex Building located at 680 Park Avenue in Idaho Falls, Idaho at 7:30 p.m. 
 
There were present: 
Mayor Rebecca L. Noah Casper 
Councilmember David M. Smith 
Councilmember John B. Radford 
Councilmember Michelle Ziel-Dingman 
Councilmember Barbara Ehardt 
Councilmember Ed Marohn 
 
Absent: 
Councilmember Thomas Hally 
 
Also present: 
Randy Fife, City Attorney 
Kathy Hampton, City Clerk 
All available Department Directors 
 
Mayor Casper invited Dave Coffey, Deputy Fire Chief of Operations, to come forward and lead those present in the 
Pledge of Allegiance. 
 
Mayor Casper requested any public comment not related to items on the agenda. No one appeared.  
 
Presentation: 

 

Fire Chief Dave Hanneman appeared for River Rescue Honors. He stated a total of 16 Fire Department personnel 
were involved in the recent rescue operations and introduced staff in attendance; Lance Johnson-Battalion Chief, 
Brian Moncur-Captain, Matt Hardy-Firefighter, Matt Call-Firefighter, and Jess Morgan-Firefighter. He also 
introduced two (2) of the victims, Jose Gomez and his four (4)-year old son, Jose Gomez Junior, stating the 
remaining two (2) victims, Dennis Davey and his son Jacob Davey also four (4) years old, were unable to attend the 
presentation. Chief Hanneman stated on May 24, 2016, Mr. Davey’s boat, containing the four (4) victims capsized 
in the Snake River near Memorial Drive and Broadway. Several Fire Department, Police Department, and Sheriff’s 
Office units were dispatched to the scene. It was known upon arrival that Jacob Davey was trapped in debris 
underneath the boat. Mr. Gomez, Jose Jr., and Mr. Davey were rescued from the water by departments’ staff. All 
victims were transported by Emergency Medical Services (EMS) to Eastern Idaho Regional Medical Center 
(EIRMC) for treatment of hypothermia as the water temperature was approximately 50 degrees. Once Jacob was 
extricated, Battalion Chief Johnson immediately began CPR as Jacob had been under water for approximately 15-
20 minutes and had no heartbeat. He was then transported by awaiting EMS to EIRMC. Chief Hanneman stated 
persons who normally have no heartbeat for 6-10 minutes will generally not regain a heartbeat, however, those who 
experience a cold-water drowning have a better chance of survival. He stated younger children have a better of 
survival as well. Due to the described life-saving measures, Jacob is expected to have a full recovery. Chief 
Hanneman once again recognized those who participated in the river rescue. A standing ovation followed. Chief 
Hanneman then re-introduced Jose Gomez. Mr. Gomez briefly recalled the events and expressed his appreciation to 
the Fire Department staff. Mayor Casper believes the continual first responder training improves response time for 
such emergencies. She also expressed her appreciation to the Fire Department staff.  
 
Consent Agenda Items: 

 

Idaho Falls Power (IFP) requested approval of Bonneville Power Administration (BPA) Contract Revision No. 4 to 
Exhibit D. 



JUNE 9, 2016  

2 

 

The City Clerk requested approval of the Expenditure Summary for the month of May, 2016. 
  
FUND TOTAL EXPENDITURE 

General Fund $958,535.25 
Street Fund 135,133.43 
Recreation Fund 37,529.85 
Library Fund 67,987.78 
Municipal Equipment Replacement Fund (MERF) 283,058.98 
Electric Light Public Purpose Fund 66,353.79 
Business Improvement District 12,500.00 
Golf Fund 92,908.47 
Self-Insurance Fund 93,066.35 
Street Capital Improvement Fund 10,000.00 
Traffic Light Capital Improvement Fund 1,964.36 
Airport Fund 93,479.34 
Water and Sewer Fund 334,279.44 
Sanitation Fund 3,551.81 
Ambulance Fund 45,408.68 
Electric Light Fund 3,643,098.42 
Payroll Liability Fund 2,660,532.68 
TOTAL $8,539,388.63 
 
The City Clerk requested approval of minutes from the April 15 & 16, 2016, Strategic Planning Session, May 9, 
2016, Joint Meeting with Ammon Officials, May 12, 2016, Idaho Falls Power Board Meeting, and May 12, 2016, 
Regular Council Meeting.   
 
The City Clerk requested approval of license applications, all carrying the required approvals. 
 
It was moved by Councilmember Marohn, seconded by Councilmember Smith, to approve all items on the Consent 
Agenda according to recommendations presented. Roll call as follows: Aye – Councilmembers Ehardt, Marohn, 
Radford, Smith, Dingman. Nay – none. Motion carried.  
 
Regular Agenda Items: 

 

Municipal Services Department submitted the following item for Council consideration: 
 
Subject:  Bid IF-16-20, Purchase and Removal of House 
 
It is the recommendation of Idaho Falls Power and Municipal Services Departments to accept the sole bid from 
Greg Rainey to purchase and remove a house located on City property in the amount of $1,500.00. Idaho Falls 
Power purchased the property located at 2017 East Iona Road to be used for a future substation site location. The 
buyer of the house will arrange to have Lemon’s House Moving move the house by September 30, 2016.  
 
Councilmember Marohn stated this property is located along the North Loop transmission line project on the east 
side of town. It was critical to obtain this property to proceed on the planned route for development of transmission 
lines and substation as the property includes water rights and a well. In 2012, an appraisal was completed for one 
(1) acre of the property. However, the owner, through negotiation process, agreed to sell all five (5) acres which the 
City purchased in 2014. The decision was made to discontinue maintenance on the property, therefore a bid process 
was extended to allow the sale of the house. After several weeks of being advertised, only one (1) bid, from Greg 
Rainey, was received.  



JUNE 9, 2016  

3 

 

It was moved by Councilmember Marohn, seconded by Councilmember Radford, to accept the sole bid from Greg 
Rainey in the amount of $1,500.00 to purchase and remove a house located at 2017 East Iona Road to be used for 
future substation site location, and authorize the Mayor and City Clerk to sign any necessary documents. Roll call 
as follows: Aye – Councilmembers Dingman, Smith, Marohn, Ehardt, Radford. Nay – none. Motion carried.  
 
Parks and Recreation submitted the following items for Council consideration:  
 
Subject:  Cemetery Plots Resolution 
 
For your consideration is a resolution to create protocol in alignment with recently passed protocol by Idaho State 
Legislature which allows for the more efficient distribution of unused cemetery plots. The resolution has been 
reviewed and approved by the City Attorney. 
 
Councilmember Radford stated this Resolution will not be effective until July 1, 2016.  
 
It was moved by Councilmember Radford, seconded by Councilmember Marohn, to approve the resolution creating 
protocol for the efficient distribution of unused cemetery plots, and give authorization for the Mayor and City Clerk 
to sign the necessary documents. Roll call as follows: Aye – Councilmembers Marohn, Dingman, Ehardt, Radford, 
Smith. Nay – none. Motion carried.  
 
Subject:  Primary Stock Contract – War Bonnet Roundup Rodeo 
 
For your consideration is the Primary Stock Contractor Agreement with Dakota Rodeo for the War Bonnet 
Roundup Rodeo in an estimated amount of approximately $50,000.00. This one (1) event agreement has been 
reviewed and approved by the City attorney. 
 
Councilmember Radford stated the actual costs will be determined by the number of rodeo events. It is anticipated 
costs related to the rodeo will be funded through rodeo sponsors and ticket sales.  
 
It was moved by Councilmember Radford, seconded by Councilmember Marohn, to approve Primary Stock 
Contractor Agreement for the War Bonnet Roundup Rodeo with Dakota Rodeo in an estimated amount of 
approximately $50,000 and give authorization for the Mayor and City Clerk to sign the necessary documents. Roll 
call as follows: Aye – Councilmembers Smith, Dingman, Radford, Ehardt, Marohn. Nay – none. Motion carried.  
 
Public Works submitted the following items for Council consideration: 
 
Subject:  Idaho Transportation Department State/Local Agreement – 12th Street Idaho Canal Bridge Project 
 
For your consideration is a State/Local Development Agreement with the Idaho Transportation Department and 
accompanying Resolution with respect to the 12th Street Idaho Canal Bridge project. This agreement stipulates that 
$7,000.00 be forwarded as deposit against the City match with the signed agreement if approved. This agreement 
has been reviewed by the City Attorney. 
 
It was moved by Councilmember Ehardt, seconded by Councilmember Dingman, to adopt the resolution, approve 
the State/Local Development Agreement for the 12th Street Idaho Canal Bridge project, and give authorization for 
the Mayor and City Clerk to sign the necessary documents. Roll call as follows: Aye – Councilmember Marohn, 
Radford, Dingman, Smith, Ehardt. Nay – none. Motion carried.  
 

RESOLUTION 2016-17 
 



JUNE 9, 2016  

4 

 

WHEREAS, THE IDAHO TRANSPORTATION DEPARTMENT, HEREAFTER, CALLED THE STATE, HAS 
SUBMITTED AN AGREEMENT STATING OBLIGATIONS OF THE STATE AND THE CITY OF IDAHO 
FALLS, HEREAFTER CALLED THE CITY, FOR DEVELOPMENT OF 12TH STREET IDAHO CANAL 
CULVERT.  
 
Subject:  Idaho Transportation Department State/Local Agreement – South Boulevard Corridor Rectangular Rapid 
Flashing Beacons (RRFB) 
 
For your consideration is a State/Local Development Agreement with the Idaho Transportation Department and 
accompanying Resolution with respect to the South Boulevard Corridor Rectangular Rapid Flashing Beacons 
project. This agreement stipulates that the City will administer the construction and inspection services in lieu of 
the customary fund match of 7.34%. This agreement has been reviewed by the City Attorney. 
 
Public Works Director Chris Fredericksen stated the rapid flashing beacons will be installed at Birch Street, near 
the D Street underpass as well as 9th Street. The project will be completed with accepted safety improvement funds. 
He believes the current beacons have been well received in the community.  
 
It was moved by Councilmember Ehardt, seconded by Councilmember Dingman, to adopt the resolution, approve 
the State/Local Development Agreement for the South Boulevard Corridor Rectangular Rapid Flashing Beacons 
project, and give authorization for the Mayor and City Clerk to sign the necessary documents. Roll call as follows: 
Aye – Councilmember Ehardt, Radford, Smith, Marohn, Dingman. Nay – none. Motion carried.  
 

RESOLUTION 2016- 19 

 
WHEREAS, THE IDAHO TRANSPORTATION DEPARTMENT, HEREAFTER, CALLED THE STATE, HAS 
SUBMITTED AN AGREEMENT STATING OBLIGATIONS OF THE STATE AND THE CITY OF IDAHO 
FALLS, HEREAFTER CALLED THE CITY, FOR CONSTRUCTION OF S. BOULEVARD CORRIDOR RRFB 
LIGHTS. 
 
Subject:  Idaho Transportation Department State/Local Agreement – Lomax Street and F Street Flashing Stop Signs 
 
For your consideration is a State/Local Development Agreement with the Idaho Transportation Department and 
accompanying Resolution with respect to the Lomax Street and F Street Flashing Stop Signs project. This 
agreement stipulates that the City will administer the construction and inspection services in lieu of the customary 
fund match of 7.34%. This agreement has been reviewed by the City Attorney. 
 
Director Fredericksen stated this project is utilizing federal funding as a safety improvement to install LED (light-
emitting diode) lights on three (3) stop signs located on F Street (Capital/Park Avenue/Shoup) as well as three (3) 
stop signs located on Lomax Street (Freeman/Wabash/Fanning). Solar power is being utilized where possible to 
reduce any ongoing costs.   
 
It was moved by Councilmember Ehardt, seconded by Councilmember Dingman, to adopt the resolution, approve 
the State/Local Development Agreement for the Lomax Street and F Street Flashing Stop Signs project, and give 
authorization for the Mayor and City Clerk to execute the necessary documents. Roll call as follows: Aye – 
Councilmember Radford, Ehardt, Smith, Marohn, Dingman. Nay – none. Motion carried. 
 

RESOLUTION 2016- 20 

 
WHEREAS, THE IDAHO TRANSPORTATION DEPARTMENT, HEREAFTER, CALLED THE STATE, HAS 
SUBMITTED AN AGREEMENT STATING OBLIGATIONS OF THE STATE AND THE CITY OF IDAHO 



JUNE 9, 2016  

5 

 

FALLS, HEREAFTER CALLED THE CITY, FOR CONSTRUCTION OF LOMAX AND F STREET 
FLASHING STOP SIGNS.  
 
Subject:  Right-of-Way Use Agreement – ExteNet 
 
For your consideration is a proposed Right-of-Way Use Agreement for ExteNet to install fiber optics in public 
right-of-way. The agreement was prepared by the City Attorney and has been reviewed by Idaho Falls Power. 
 
Councilmember Ehardt stated due to State regulations, a franchise agreement would not apply. Idaho Falls Power 
Compliance and Engineering Manager Richard Malloy stated the agreement allows services within the right-of-
way, including provisions to allow the City to reserve space within said right-of-way. This agreement is for 
underground use.   
 
It was moved by Councilmember Ehardt, seconded by Councilmember Dingman, to approve the Right-of-Way Use 
Agreement for ExteNet and give authorization for the Mayor and City Clerk to execute the necessary documents 
and give authorization for the Mayor and City Clerk to execute the necessary documents. Roll call as follows: Aye 
– Councilmember Marohn, Dingman, Ehardt, Radford, Smith. Nay – none. Motion carried.  
 
Idaho Falls Power submitted the following items for Council consideration: 
 
Subject:  Approve Pole Attachment License Agreement with ExteNet Systems, Inc 
 
Idaho Falls Power (IFP) has received a request from ExteNet Systems Inc. to attach communication infrastructure 
to power poles. IFP has a Federal Communications Commission (FCC)-approved template for licensing agreements 
that will be applied to the ExteNet request. This template will be adopted for all pole attachment requests and, in 
fact, Idaho Falls Power is currently negotiating agreements with three (3) other companies. 
 
Councilmember Smith stated this agreement is for above the ground use and height of pole placement will be 
determined by the attached cables.  
 
It was moved by Councilmember Smith, seconded by Councilmember Marohn, to approve the Pole Attachment 
License Agreement with ExteNet Systems Inc., and authorize the Mayor to execute the necessary documents. Roll 
call as follows: Aye – Councilmember Ehardt, Marohn, Radford, Smith, Dingman. Nay – none. Motion carried. 
 
Subject:  Bid Award - Gem State Right Dike Drain Replacement Project 
 
For your consideration is the bid tabulation for the Gem State Right Dike Drain Replacement Project. The right 
dike is part of the engineered earthen structure of the Gem State dam. This project will replace the single wall ADS 
pipe between manholes 1 and 2 on the right dike, where the pipe has collapsed.  This project is in the Capital 
Improvement Plan and in the FY16 budget.  
 

Engineer’s Estimate 3H Construction LLC 
$163,912.00 $159,227.00 

 
It was moved by Councilmember Smith, seconded by Councilmember Ehardt, to approve the design and award the 
bid to the lowest responsive, responsible bidder, 3H Construction LLC, in the amount of $159,227.00, and give 
authorization for the Mayor and City Clerk to sign any necessary documents. Roll call as follows: Aye – 
Councilmember Dingman, Radford, Marohn, Smith, Ehardt. Nay – none. Motion carried. 
 
Subject:  Approve a Resolution to Procure Services for the Upper Plant Boat Ramp Replacement Project on the 
Open Market 



JUNE 9, 2016  

6 

 

Idaho Falls Power solicited bids to replace the boat ramp near the Upper Plant this fall while the sedimentation 
removal project is in progress. No bids were received. The project was included in the Capital Improvement Plan 
and the FY16 budget. Given the lack of bids, staff requests permission to negotiate services for the project on the 
open market.  
 
It was moved by Councilmember Smith, seconded by Councilmember Ehardt, to approve the resolution to 
authorize staff to procure services for the Upper Plant Boat Ramp Replacement Project on the open market, and 
give authorization for the Mayor and City Clerk to sign the necessary documents. Roll call as follows: Aye – 
Councilmember Radford, Ehardt, Smith, Marohn, Dingman. Nay – none. Motion carried. 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 2016-21 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF IDAHO FALLS, IDAHO, A MUNICIPAL CORPORATION OF THE 
STATE OF IDAHO, TO PROCURE SERVICES FOR THE UPPER PLANT BOAT RAMP REPLACEMENT ON 
THE OPEN MARKET; AND PROVIDING THAT THIS RESOLUTION BE EFFECTIVE UPON ITS PASSAGE, 
APPROVAL, AND PUBLICATION ACCORDING TO LAW.  
 
Legal Department submitted the following item for Council consideration: 
 
Subject:  Resolution of City’s Records Retention Schedule 
 
For your consideration is a Resolution which follows recent changes made by the Idaho Legislature regarding City 
records retention. The Legislature has changed some of the definitions and requirements relative to reproducing, 
retaining, and managing public records. The most significant change allows cities, under certain circumstances, to 
maintain a copy of a City record in a photographic, digital, or other non-paper medium. The resolution contains a 
definition of “ephemera”, which addresses transitory, non-permanent records which do not normally constitute 
something likely to have intrinsic value or constitute something that the City would keep in the normal course of 
City business.  
 
Attorney Fife reviewed the length of time required to retain public records including historical, permanent, and 
semi-permanent. He indicated prior to destroying records, a resolution must be passed to address records by type. 
He stated “ephemera” includes ‘post-it’ or similar notes which are only used as a utility to create the document. 
Records will be reviewed between the City Clerk’s Office and the City Attorney’s Office to ensure proper records 
are retained per State Code.    
 
It was moved by Councilmember Ehardt, seconded by Councilmember Marohn, to adopt the resolution regarding a 
City Records Retention Schedule and authorize the Mayor and City Clerk to sign the necessary documents. Roll 
call as follows: Aye – Councilmember Smith, Dingman, Ehardt, Marohn, Radford. Nay – none. Motion carried. 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 2016-22 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF IDAHO FALLS, IDAHO, A MUNICIPAL CORPORATION OF THE 
STATE OF IDAHO, PROVIDING A DEFINITION OF CITY RECORDS AND THE CLASSIFICATION AND 
RENTENTION OF CERTAIN PUBLIC RECORDS PURSUANT TO IDAHO CODE AND COUNCIL POLICY; 
AND PROVIDING THAT THIS RESOLUTION BE EFFECTIVE UPON ITS PASSAGE, APPROVAL, AND 
PUBLICATION ACCORDING TO LAW.  
 
Community Development Services submitted the following items for Council consideration: 
 
Subject:  Request for Waiver of Electric Line Extension Fees 
 



JUNE 9, 2016  

7 

 

For your consideration is a request for waiver of the Electric Line Extension Fee for the Springhill Suites project 
located at 660 River Walk Drive. The fees requested for waiver total $54,579.55. This request is made pursuant to 
City Code 8-5-31 which states, "Council reserves the right to waive or adjust fees (other than net metering fees) 
upon a finding of good cause to do so where such waiver or reduction supports redevelopment or the annexation of 
property contiguous with or surrounded by the City.” The site under consideration is part of an urban renewal 
district and is an area that is redeveloping. Staff recommends approval of the waiver.  
 
Councilmember Dingman stated this waiver process began in January, 2016.  
 
Community Development Services Director Brad Cramer stated this is the second request for this waiver. Waiver 
requests will only be presented to Council upon recommendation by Community Development Services staff.  
 
It was moved by Councilmember Dingman, seconded by Councilmember Smith, to approve the waiver of the 
Electric Line Extension Fee for the Springhill Suites project located at 660 River Walk Drive. Roll call as follows: 
Aye – Councilmember Smith, Radford, Dingman, Ehardt, Marohn. Nay – none. Motion carried. 
 
Subject:  Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) 2015 Consolidated Annual Performance and Evaluation 
Report (CAPER) Resolution 
 
For your consideration is the resolution approving the 2015 CDBG CAPER. The CAPER was reviewed by the 
Council at the May 12, 2016, meeting. No comments were received during the public comment period.  
 
Councilmember Dingman stated approval of the resolution is the final step in the mandated process for the CDBG 
CAPER. 
 
It was moved by Councilmember Dingman, seconded by Councilmember Smith, to approve the Community 
Development Block Grant 2015 Consolidated Annual Performance and Evaluation Report Resolution and give 
authorization for the Mayor and City Clerk to sign the necessary documents. Roll call as follows: Aye – 
Councilmember Dingman, Smith, Marohn, Ehardt, Radford. Nay – none. Motion carried. 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 2016-23 

 

RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF IDAHO FALLS ADOPTING THE FY2015 ANNUAL REPORT 
CONSOLIDATED ANNUAL PERFORMANCE AND EVALUATION REPORT (CAPER) FOR THE 
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT BLOCK GRANT.  
 
Subject:  Annexation and Initial Zoning of HC- 1, Annexation Ordinance, Zoning Ordinance, and Reasoned 
Statements of Relevant Criteria and Standards, M&B: 5.66 Acres, SE ¼, Section 8, T 2N, R 38E 
 
For your consideration is the application for Annexation and Initial Zoning of HC-1, Annexation Ordinance, 
Zoning Ordinance, and Reasoned Statements of Relevant Criteria and Standards, M&B: 5.66 Acres, SE ¼, Section 
8, T 2N, R 38E. The Planning and Zoning Commission considered this item at its May 3, 2016, meeting and 
recommended approval by unanimous vote. Staff concurs with this recommendation.  
 
Mayor Casper opened the public hearing and ordered all staff reports and presentation materials be entered into the 
record. 
 
Director Cramer appeared with the following: 
 
 Slide 1:  Property under consideration in surrounding zoning use 
 Slide 2:  Future Land Use Map of the Comprehensive Plan 



JUNE 9, 2016  

8 

 

 Slide 3:  Aerial photo of property under consideration 
 Slide 4:  Additional aerial photo of property under consideration 
Director Cramer stated the southern portion of this property has been receiving City services of water and sewer, 
since 1989.  
 Slide 5:  Photo of property frontage along Yellowstone Avenue 
 Slide 6:  Photo looking northwest across property  
 Slide 7:  Photo looking northeast along trailer park driveway 
 Slide 8:  Photo looking at undeveloped portion of property to the north 
 
Mayor Casper invited any public comments. 
 
Kevin Murray, Idaho Falls, appeared in lieu of the applicant. Mr. Murray stated this property has been purchased by 
the owners of State Trailer Supply and was annexed at an earlier time. The parcel is adjacent to current zoning. It is 
unknown of the power supply source.  
 
Mayor Casper closed the public hearing.  
 
Councilmember Dingman stated curb, gutter, and sidewalk improvements will be required for the frontage of the 
property as development occurs.  
 
It was moved by Councilmember Dingman, seconded by Councilmember Smith, to approve the Ordinance 
annexing M&B: 5.66 Acres, SE ¼, Section 8, T 2N, R 38E, under the suspension of the rules requiring three 
complete and separate readings and that it be read by title and published by summary. Roll call as follows: Aye – 
Councilmembers Smith, Dingman, Radford, Ehardt, Marohn. Nay – none. Motion carried. 
 
At the request of Mayor Casper, the City Clerk read the Ordinance by title only: 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 3070 

 

AN ORDINANCE ANNEXING APPROXIMATELY 5.66 ACRES LOCATED NORTH OF YELLOWSTONE 
HIGHWAY AND WEST OF 15TH EAST TO THE CITY OF IDAHO FALLS; DESCRIBING SUCH LANDS; 
AMENDING THE CITY MAP; AMENDING THE LEGAL DESCRIPTION OF THE CITY WITH THE 
APPROPRIATE COUNTY AND STATE AUTHORITIES; ESTABLISHING A COMPREHENSIVE PLAN 
DESIGNATION, AND PROVIDING SEVERABILITY, PUBLICATION BY SUMMARY, AND 
ESTABLISHING EFFECTIVE DATE. 
 

It was moved by Councilmember Dingman, seconded by Councilmember Smith to approve the Reasoned Statement 
of Relevant Criteria and Standards for the annexation for M&B: 5.66 Acres, SE ¼, Section 8, T 2N, R 38E, and 
give authorization for the Mayor to execute the necessary documents. Roll call as follows: Aye – Councilmembers 
Marohn, Radford, Dingman, Smith, Ehardt. Nay – none. Motion carried. 
 
It was moved by Councilmember Dingman, seconded by Councilmember Smith to approve the Ordinance 
assigning a Comprehensive Plan Designation of HC-1 (Highway Commercial) Zone and establishing the initial 
zoning for M&B: 5.66 Acres, SE ¼, Section 8, T 2N, R 38E, as “Commercial”, under the suspension of the rules 
requiring three complete and separate readings and that it be read by title and published by summary, that the 
Comprehensive Plan be amended to include the area annexed herewith, and that the City Planner be instructed to 
reflect said annexation, zoning, and amendment to the Comprehensive Plan on the Comprehensive Plan and Zoning 
Maps located in the Planning Office. Roll call as follows: Aye – Councilmembers Ehardt, Radford, Smith, Marohn, 
Dingman. Nay – none. Motion carried.  
 
At the request of Mayor Casper, the City Clerk read the Ordinance by title only: 



JUNE 9, 2016  

9 

 

ORDINANCE NO. 3071 
 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF IDAHO FALLS, IDAHO, A MUNICIPAL CORPORATION OF THE 
STATE OF IDAHO; PROVIDING FOR THE INITIAL ZONING OF APPROXIMATELY 5.66 ACRES 
DESCRIBED IN EXHIBIT A OF THIS ORDINANCE AS HC-1 ZONE; AND PROVIDING SEVERABILITY, 
PUBLICATION BY SUMMARY, AND ESTABLISHING EFFECTIVE DATE. 
 
It was moved by Councilmember Dingman, seconded by Councilmember Smith, to approve the Reasoned 
Statement of Relevant Criteria and Standards for the Initial Zoning of HC-1 Zone for M&B: 5.66 Acres, SE ¼, 
Section 8, T 2N, R 38E, and give authorization for the Mayor to execute the necessary documents.  Roll call as 
follows: Aye – Councilmembers Radford, Ehardt, Smith, Marohn, Dingman. Nay – none. Motion carried. 
 
Subject: Annexation and Initial Zoning of R-1, Annexation Ordinance, Zoning Ordinance, and Reasoned 
Statements of Relevant Criteria and Standards, Heritage Park 
 
For your consideration is the application for Annexation and Initial Zoning of R-1, Annexation Ordinance, Zoning 
Ordinance, and Reasoned Statements of Relevant Criteria and Standards for Heritage Park. The Planning and 
Zoning Commission considered this item at its May 3, 2016, meeting and recommended approval by unanimous 
vote. Staff concurs with this recommendation.  
 
Mayor Casper opened the public hearing and ordered all staff reports and presentation materials be entered into the 
record. 
 
Director Cramer appeared with the following, stating the City is the applicant.  
 
 Slide 1:  Property under consideration in surrounding zoning use 
Director Cramer stated there is a small parcel in this location which is not under City ownership and therefore is not 
being annexed. At this time the property owner of said parcel is unknown. There is also a small section, considered 
the bank of the Snake River, which would include State involvement for annexation. It was recommended by the 
City Surveyor to delay contacting the State until other river concerns could be addressed as well.  
 Slide 2:  Future Land Use Map of the Comprehensive Plan 
 Slide 3:  Aerial photo of property under consideration 
 Slide 4:  Additional aerial photo of property under consideration 
 Slide 5:  Photo looking southeast across property 
 Slide 6:  Photo looking east across Snake River of IFP Power Plant  
 Slide 7:  Photo looking south toward Sunnyside Road 
 Slide 8:  Photo looking west across Snake River at property 
 Slide 9:  Photo looking west across site 
 Slide 10: Additional photo looking west across Snake River at property 
 
Director Cramer stated the islands in close proximity can eventually be annexed into City.  
 
Mayor Casper invited any public comments. 
 
Due to the City being the owner through land donation, there was no public comment. 
 
Mayor Casper closed the public hearing. 
 
Councilmember Dingman stated this is a very early step in the process related to the zoning for development of a 
City park while maintaining consistency with the Comprehensive Plan.   
 



JUNE 9, 2016  

10 

 

It was moved by Councilmember Dingman, seconded by Councilmember Smith, to approve the Ordinance 
annexing Heritage Park, under the suspension of the rules requiring three complete and separate readings and that it 
be read by title and published by summary. Roll call as follows: Aye – Councilmembers Ehardt, Marohn, Radford, 
Smith, Dingman. Nay – none. Motion carried. 
 
At the request of Mayor Casper, the City Clerk read the Ordinance by title only: 

 

ORDINANCE NO. 3072 

 

AN ORDINANCE ANNEXING APPROXIMATELY 9.41 ACRES LOCATED NORTH OF SUNNYSIDE 
ROAD, WEST OF THE SNAKE RIVER AND EAST OF SNAKE RIVER PARKWAY TO THE CITY OF 
IDAHO FALLS; DESCRIBING SUCH LANDS; AMENDING THE CITY MAP; AMENDING THE LEGAL 
DESCRIPTION OF THE CITY WITH THE APPROPRIATE COUNTY AND STATE AUTHORITIES; 
ESTABLISHING A COMPREHENSIVE PLAN DESIGNATION, AND PROVIDING SEVERABILITY, 
PUBLICATION BY SUMMARY, AND ESTABLISHING EFFECTIVE DATE. 
 
It was moved by Councilmember Dingman, seconded by Councilmember Smith, to approve the Reasoned 
Statement of Relevant Criteria and Standards for the annexation for Heritage Park, and give authorization for the 
Mayor to execute the necessary documents.  Roll call as follows: Aye – Councilmembers Dingman, Radford, 
Marohn, Smith, Ehardt. Nay – none. Motion carried. 
 
It was moved by Councilmember Dingman, seconded by Councilmember Smith, to approve the Ordinance 
assigning a Comprehensive Plan Designation of R-1 (Residence) Zone and establishing the initial zoning for 
Heritage Park as “Parks, Recreation”, under the suspension of the rules requiring three complete and separate 
readings and that it be read by title and published by summary, that the Comprehensive Plan be amended to include 
the area annexed herewith, and that the City Planner be instructed to reflect said annexation, zoning, and 
amendment to the Comprehensive Plan on the Comprehensive Plan and Zoning Maps located in the Planning 
Office. .  Roll call as follows: Aye – Councilmembers Radford, Ehardt, Smith, Marohn, Dingman. Nay – none. 
Motion carried. 
 
At the request of Mayor Casper, the City Clerk read the Ordinance by title only: 

 

ORDINANCE NO. 3073 
 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF IDAHO FALLS, IDAHO, A MUNICIPAL CORPORATION OF THE 
STATE OF IDAHO; PROVIDING FOR THE INITIAL ZONING OF APPROXIMATELY 9.41 ACRES 
DESCRIBED IN EXHIBIT A OF THIS ORDINANCE AS R-1 ZONE; AND PROVIDING SEVERABILITY, 
PUBLICATION BY SUMMARY, AND ESTABLISHING EFFECTIVE DATE. 
 
It was moved by Councilmember Dingman, seconded by Councilmember Smith, to approve the Reasoned 
Statement of Relevant Criteria and Standards for the Initial Zoning of R-1 Zone for Heritage Park, and give 
authorization for the Mayor to execute the necessary documents. Roll call as follows: Aye – Councilmembers 
Smith, Dingman, Ehardt, Marohn, Radford. Nay – none. Motion carried.  
 
There being no further business, it was moved by Councilmember Radford, seconded by Councilmember Marohn, 
to adjourn the meeting at 8:37 p.m. which motion passed following a unanimous vote.  
 
 
_____________________________________   _______________________________________ 
  CITY CLERK       MAYOR 



JUNE 20, 2016  

1 

 

The City Council of the City of Idaho Falls met in Special Council Meeting, Monday, June 20, 2016, in the Council 
Chambers in the City Annex Building located at 680 Park Avenue in Idaho Falls, Idaho at 7:30 p.m. 
 
There were present: 
Councilmember Thomas Hally 
Councilmember Ed Marohn 
Councilmember John B. Radford  
Councilmember Michelle Ziel-Dingman  
Councilmember David M. Smith 
Councilmember Barbara Ehardt  
 
Absent: 
Mayor Rebecca L. Noah Casper 
 
Also present: 
Randy Fife, City Attorney 
Kathy Hampton, City Clerk 
All available Department Directors 
 
Mayor Pro Tem Hally invited Kenny McOmber, City Treasurer to come forward and lead those present in the 
Pledge of Allegiance. 
 
Mayor Pro Tem Hally requested any public comment not related to items on the agenda. Councilmember Ehardt, on 
behalf of the Councilmembers, wished a Happy Birthday to Mayor Pro Tem Hally. No one else appeared. 
 
It was moved by Councilmember Hally, seconded by Councilmember Marohn, to move Regular Agenda Item 5.E., 
Police Department item, in front of Regular Agenda Item 5.B., Fire Department item, being Councilmember 
Dingman is liaison for the Police Department. The motion was made with good faith reason due to Councilmember 
Dingman’s health and the possibility of her early departure from the meeting. Roll call as follows: Aye – 
Councilmember Ehardt, Marohn, Hally, Radford, Smith, Dingman. Nay – none. Motion carried. 
 
Consent Agenda Items: 

 

Community Development Services requested receipt of Planning and Zoning Commission Actions, June 7, 2016, 
meeting. 
 
The City Clerk requested approval of Treasurer’s Report for the month of May, 2016. 
 
The City Clerk requested approval of Minutes from the May 23, 2016, Council Work Session and May 26, 2016, 
Council Meeting. 
 
The City Clerk requested approval of License Applications, including a Beer To Be Consumed On Premises license 
to Bear & Blue, all carrying the required approvals. 
 
It was moved by Councilmember Marohn, seconded by Councilmember Radford, to approve all items on the 
Consent Agenda according to recommendations presented. Roll call as follows: Aye – Councilmembers Dingman, 
Smith, Marohn, Ehardt, Hally, Radford. Nay – none. Motion carried.  
 
Regular Agenda Items: 

 
Community Development Services submitted the following items for Council consideration: 



JUNE 20, 2016  

2 

 

Subject:  Request for waiver of electric line extension fees, Printcraft Press 
 
For your consideration is a request for waiver of electric line extension fees for the project at 670 Colorado for 
Printcraft Press. The total fees were $73,698.63. This request is made pursuant to City Code 8-5-31 which states, 
"Council reserves the right to waive or adjust fees (other than net metering fees) upon a finding of good cause to do 
so where such waiver or reduction supports redevelopment or the annexation of property contiguous with or 
surrounded by the City." This site is unique from previous requests due to a number of factors. The site is an infill 
site as it is not on the fringes of existing City limits and is surrounded by City and County development. Also, 
sewer and water facilities are either adjacent to the site or within a short distance. However, electric facilities were 
not as close to the site and lines and poles had to be extended. There were also no existing transformers on the site 
and the project requires more transformers than a more typical residential or commercial development. Based on 
these factors, and in consultation with Idaho Falls Power, staff recommends approval of a waiver for the labor 
portion of the line extension fees which total $17,324.28.  
 
It was moved by Councilmember Dingman, seconded by Councilmember Smith, to approve the request for waiver 
for the labor portion of the electric line extension fees in the amount of $17,324.28, for the project located at 670 
Colorado, Printcraft Press. Roll call as follows: Aye – Councilmembers Marohn, Dingman, Ehardt, Hally, Radford, 
Smith. Nay – none. Motion carried. 
 
Subject:  Request for extension to record a final plat, Grandview Storage Units, Division No. 1 
 
The applicant for the Grandview Storage Units, Division No. 1, Final Plat has requested a 180-day extension to 
record the plat. The owner is still resolving easement issues that must be taken care of prior to recording. The plat 
was approved by the City Council on March 10, 2016, and the 90-day deadline to record the plat was June 8, 2016. 
Staff recommends approval of an extension to record to plat to December 31, 2016.  
 
It was moved by Councilmember Dingman, seconded by Councilmember Smith, to approve the request for 
extension to record a final plat to December 31, 2016, for Grandview Storage Units, Division No. 1. Roll call as 
follows: Aye – Councilmembers Smith, Hally, Dingman, Radford, Ehardt, Marohn. Nay – none. Motion carried. 
 
Idaho Falls Police Department submitted the following item for consideration: 
 
Subject: Leave of Absence Without Pay 
 
An employee with the City of Idaho Falls Police Department, Annake Scholes, has provided a waiver allowing for 
a discussion and disclosure of information related to her employment and health necessary to make a determination 
about her request for a leave of absence without pay. This individual has been employed with the City of Idaho 
Falls since January, 2016. She is not eligible for Family Medical Leave, which requires employment with the City 
for one year. Ms. Scholes intends to take up to 12 weeks off for delivery and care of her newborn child. She began 
her absence on June 6, 2016, at the direction of her physician. She currently has paid benefits that would last until 
approximately June 23, 2016.  
 
Police Chief Mark McBride stated per City Personnel Policy, he is allowed to grant up to 15 days of leave without 
pay, any extension of time would require Council approval. He believes Ms. Scholes is a valued employee and 
stated this potential issue was discussed prior to Ms. Scholes’ acceptance of employment. Chief McBride is also 
requesting Ms. Scholes benefits continue during her absence. Ms. Scholes portion would amount to approximately 
$308.00 and the City portion would amount to approximately $3,000.00. He stated there would be salary savings in 
the budget due to her absence which would be applied to the City portion of benefits. Chief McBride stated the 
current staff will assist with any additional administrative duties during Ms. Scholes absence.  
 



JUNE 20, 2016  

3 

 

It was moved by Councilmember Dingman, seconded by Councilmember Marohn, in accordance with City Policy 
XXIV, to approve Leave Without Pay for Annake Scholes through August 29, 2016, and that her eligibility for 
benefits remain whole during her absence. Roll call as follows: Aye – Councilmembers Smith, Hally, Dingman, 
Radford, Ehardt, Marohn. Nay – none. Motion carried. 
 
Idaho Falls Fire Department submitted the following item for consideration: 
 
Subject:  Fire Protection and Equipment Purchase Agreement with Bonneville County Fire District 1 
 
For your consideration is the 2016-2017 Fire Protection Joint Services Agreement with the Bonneville County Fire 
Protection District #1. This agreement reflects no change in personnel costs from last year and is based on the 
District supporting the costs of fifteen (15) members of the Fire Department at $1,596,000. In addition to the Fire 
Protection Agreement, the Fire Department has negotiated a separate Equipment Purchase Agreement for the 
District to pay for fifteen (15) sets of Personal Protective Equipment (PPE) at a cost of $47,550. This purchase 
would happen immediately and provide replacement PPE for fifteen (15) of our members.  
 
Councilmember Marohn stated any equipment maintenance costs exceeding $5,000.00 will be paid by the Fire 
District 1 agreement. The Idaho Falls Fire Department currently pays $1 per year for equipment lease as well as the 
Lincoln Fire Station lease.  
 
Fire Chief Dave Hanneman stated PPE equipment was requested in lieu of an additional percentage to the base of 
the contract. The PPE will be a one-time purchase agreement.  
 
It was moved by Councilmember Marohn, seconded by Councilmember Radford, to approve the 2016-2017 Fire 
Protection Joint Services Agreement and Equipment Purchase Agreement with Bonneville County Fire District #1, 
and give authorization for the Mayor and City Clerk to sign the necessary documents. Roll call as follows: Aye – 
Councilmembers Hally, Marohn, Radford, Smith, Ehardt. Nay – none. Motion carried. Mayor Pro Tem announced 
Councilmember Dingman’s early departure due to health reasons.  
 
Municipal Services submitted the following items for consideration: 
 
Subject: IF-16-22, Line Clearance Project 
 
For your consideration is the bid tabulation for the fiscal year 2016-2017 Line Clearance Project. It is the 
recommendation of Municipal Services and Idaho Falls Power to accept and award the sole bid from Davey Tree 
Surgery Company to provide annual tree maintenance work as requested by Idaho Falls Power. Tree maintenance 
work may include trimming, pruning, removal and stump grinding; data collection, data entry into the “Tree 
Keeper” management software reporting system; cataloging, inventorying and treatment. The total recommended 
contract amount is not to exceed $292,000 for a contract expiration date of September 20, 2017.  
 
It was moved by Councilmember Marohn, seconded by Councilmember Smith, to accept and award the sole bid 
from Davey Tree Surgery Company to provide annual tree maintenance in an amount not to exceed $292,000, and 
give authorization for the Mayor and City Clerk to sign any necessary documents. Roll call as follows: Aye – 
Ehardt, Radford, Smith, Marohn, Hally. Nay – none. Motion carried. 
 
Subject: IF-16-24, Electric Inventory 
 
For your consideration is the tabulation for the subject bid. It is the recommendation of Municipal Services and 
Idaho Falls Power to accept the lowest responsive, responsible bids from the vendors listed below to furnish electric 
inventory for a lump sum amount of $96,272.83. 
 



JUNE 20, 2016  

4 

 

Anixter Power Solutions  $17,444.50  
General Pacific        1,539.00  
Codale Electric Supply     11,607.77  
WESCO Distribution Inc.    15,381.56  
Northern Power Equipment      6,698.50  
D & S Electric Supply     43,601.50  
Lump Sum Total    $96,272.83  

 
Councilmember Marohn stated there is a modification to the bid due to equipment already purchased, therefore 
increasing the total bid amount by $2.00.  
 
It was moved by Councilmember Marohn, seconded by Councilmember Smith, to accept the lowest responsive, 
responsible bids from the vendors listed above to furnish electric inventory for a lump sum amount of $96,274.83, 
and give authorization for the Mayor and City Clerk to sign any necessary documents. Roll call as follows: Aye – 
Radford, Ehardt, Hally, Smith, Marohn. Nay – none. Motion carried. 
 
Subject: Bid IF-16-J, Sole Source Purchase for Ambulance Gurneys and Monitors 
 
The Municipal Services and Fire Department requests the authorization to advertise the City's intent to make a sole 
source purchase following a 14-day period, as per I.C. § 67-2808, and then once the advertisement has been 
completed to issue purchase orders to:  
 

Stryker for two (2) gurneys and the power load system  $71,923.04  
Physio Control for two (2) monitors     $72,740.15 

 
The above referenced equipment is standardized equipment that will be installed in the two (2) new ambulances 
approved for purchase on May 26, 2016, from Braun Northwest. To clarify, one ambulance is a replacement funded 
by the Municipal Equipment Replacement Fund and the other ambulance is an addition to the fleet to be funded by 
the ambulance fund. Both funding sources are from the 2015/16 Fire department budget.  
 
Municipal Services Director Pam Alexander stated equipment for one (1) ambulance was not included in the 
current fiscal year budget, however, funding is available in the Ambulance Fund for requested equipment. Brief 
discussion followed. Fire Chief Hanneman stated Sole Source purchase was required due to standard specifications 
for ambulance equipment.  
 
It was moved by Councilmember Marohn, seconded by Councilmember Smith, to advertise the City's intent to 
make a sole source purchase following a 14-day period, as per I.C. § 67-2808, and then once the advertisement has 
been completed to issue purchase orders for ambulance gurneys in the amount of $71,923.04, and monitors in the 
amount of $72,740.15, and authorize the Mayor and City Clerk to sign any necessary documents. Roll call as 
follows: Aye – Marohn, Ehardt, Hally, Radford, Smith. Nay – none. Motion carried. 
 
Public Works submitted the following items for consideration: 
 
Subject:  Bid Award - ADA Improvements on Northgate Mile and on Holmes Avenue Phase III 
 
On June 14th, 2016, bids were received and opened for the ADA Improvements on Northgate Mile and on Holmes 
Avenue Phase Ill project. A tabulation of bid results as follows: 
 

Engineer’s Estimate Reinhart Concrete (CAP, LLC) DePatco, Inc. JM Concrete, Inc. 
$64,225.00 $46,023.50 $57,168.00 $87,110.00 

 



JUNE 20, 2016  

5 

 

Public Works recommends approval of the plans and specifications, award to the lowest responsive, responsible 
bidder, CAP, LLC DBA Reinhart Concrete, in an amount of $46,023.50 and, authorization for the Mayor and City 
Clerk to sign contract documents. 
 
Councilmember Ehardt stated this is an annual project.  
 
It was moved by Councilmember Ehardt, seconded by Councilmember Smith, to approve the plans and 
specifications for the ADA Improvements on Northgate Mile and on Holmes Avenue Phase Ill project, and award 
the lowest responsive, responsible bidder, CAP, LLC DBA Reinhart Concrete, an amount of $46,023.50, and give 
authorization for the Mayor and City Clerk to execute the necessary documents. Roll call as follows: Aye – 
Councilmembers Ehardt, Marohn, Hally, Radford, Smith. Nay – none. Motion carried. 
 
Subject:  Bid Award – Thermoplastic Citywide – 2016 
 
On June 14th, 2016, bids were received and opened for the Thermoplastic Citywide – 2016 project. A tabulation of 
bid results as follows:  
 

Engineer’s Estimate Falls Striping, LLC Idaho Traffic Safety, Inc.  
$82,849.50 $79,535.52 $81,008.40 

 
Public Works recommends approval of the plans and specifications, award to the lowest responsive, responsible 
bidder, Falls Striping, LCC, in an amount of $79,535.52 and, authorization for the Mayor and City Clerk to sign 
contract documents. 
 
Councilmember Ehardt stated the thermoplastic is in lieu of paint and is favorable for higher pedestrian and 
vehicular areas.  
 
It was moved by Councilmember Ehardt, seconded by Councilmember Smith, to approve the plans and 
specifications for Thermoplastic Citywide – 2016 project, and award the lowest responsive, responsible bidder, 
Falls Striping, LCC, an amount of $79,535.52, and give authorization for the Mayor and City Clerk to execute the 
necessary documents. Roll call as follows: Aye – Councilmembers Radford, Marohn, Smith, Hally, Ehardt. Nay – 
none. Motion carried. 
 
Subject:  Bid Award – Eastside Greenbelt Pathway E Street to Vissing Circle 
 
On June 14th, 2016, bids were received and opened for the Eastside Greenbelt Pathway E Street to Vissing Circle 
project. A tabulation of bid results as follows:  
 

Engineer’s Estimate Thompson Paving, Inc. DePatco, Inc. HK Contractors, Inc. 
$531,778.50 $558,341.85 $585,986.40 $610,877.00 

 
Public Works recommends approval of the plans and specifications, award to the lowest responsive, responsible 
bidder, Thompson Paving Inc., in an amount of $558,341.85 and, authorization for the Mayor and City Clerk to 
sign contract documents. 
 
Public Works Director Chris Fredericksen stated this item was discussed at the May 9, 2016, Council Work Session 
and potentially will be funded from the General Fund. He indicated grants were not received for this project, 
however, funding is available due to other trail projects not occurring at this time. The project would widen the 
greenbelt pathway along the east side of the Snake River where it intersects with Riverside Drive and would 
continue to proceed north to US-20. This pathway would also provide a buffer lane of 4’ of landscaping between 
the pathway and vehicular traffic. Sections around Civitan Park will be included as well including three (3) 



JUNE 20, 2016  

6 

 

pedestrian crosswalks. It is anticipated this project will begin after July 4, 2016, with completion expected for 
October, 2016. Councilmember Radford expressed his appreciation for this project and believes it is an important 
safety factor for the community.  
 
It was moved by Councilmember Ehardt, seconded by Councilmember Smith, to approve the plans and 
specifications for Eastside Greenbelt Pathway E Street to Vissing Circle project, and award the lowest responsive, 
responsible bidder, Thompson Paving Inc., an amount of $558,341.85, and give authorization for the Mayor and 
City Clerk to execute the necessary documents.  Roll call as follows: Aye – Councilmembers Radford, Ehardt, 
Smith, Marohn, Hally. Nay – none. Motion carried. 
 
Subject: Bid Award – Minor Street Overlays – 2016 
 
On June 14th, 2016, bids were received and opened for the Minor Street Overlays - 2016 project. A tabulation of 
bid results as follows: 
 

Engineer’s Estimate DePatco, Inc. HK Contractors, Inc. 
$241,089.00 $197,537.10 $238,436.75 

 
Public Works recommends approval of the plans and specifications, award to the lowest responsive, responsible 
bidder, DePatco, Inc., in an amount of $197,537.10 and, authorization for the Mayor and City Clerk to sign contract 
documents. 
 
Councilmember Ehardt stated this is an annual project.  
 
It was moved by Councilmember Ehardt, seconded by Councilmember Smith, to approve the plans and 
specifications for Minor Street Overlays – 2016 project, and award to the lowest responsive, responsible bidder, 
DePatco, Inc., an amount of $197,537.10 and, authorization for the Mayor and City Clerk to execute the necessary 
documents. Roll call as follows: Aye – Councilmembers Hally, Smith, Ehardt, Marohn, Radford. Nay – none. 
Motion carried. 
 
Subject: Right-of-Way and Easement Vacation – Lot 5, Block 1 of the Westridge Commercial Plaza, First 
Amended 
 
As earlier authorized, the City Attorney has prepared the documents to vacate the access right-of-way and easement 
at Lot 5, Block 1 of the Westridge Commercial Plaza, First Amended. Public Works recommends approval of this 
vacation; and, authorization for the Mayor and City Clerk to sign the necessary documents. 
 
It was moved by Councilmember Ehardt, seconded by Councilmember Smith, to approve the Ordinance vacating 
the access right-of-way and easement at Lot 5, Block 1 of the Westridge Commercial Plaza, First Amended, under 
the suspension of the rules requiring three complete and separate readings and that it be read by title and published 
by summary. Roll call as follows: Aye – Councilmembers Smith, Hally, Radford, Ehardt, Marohn. Nay – none. 
Motion carried. 
 
At the request of Mayor Pro Tem Hally the City Clerk read the ordinance by title only: 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 3074 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF IDAHO FALLS, IDAHO, A MUNICIPAL CORPORATION OF THE 
STATE OF IDAHO, PROVIDING FOR THE VACATION OF A PORTION OF A RIGHT-OF-WAY AND 
EASEMENT LOCATED WITHIN THE CITY OF IDAHO FALLS AND LEGALLY DESCRIBED IN SECTION 
1 OF THIS ORDINANCE; PROVIDING THAT TITLE TO SAID VACATED STREET SHALL VEST AS 



JUNE 20, 2016  

7 

 

SPECIFIED IN SECTION 3 OF THIS ORDINANCE; PROVIDING THAT THIS ORDINANCE SHALL BE IN 
FULL FORCE AND EFFECT FROM AND AFTER PASSAGE, APPROVAL AND PUBLICATION 
ACCORDING TO LAW. 
 
Subject: Professional Services Agreements – Sanitary Sewer and Water Connection Fee Update 
 
For your consideration are two (2) Professional Services Agreements with Galardi Rothstein Group, with respect to 
the Sanitary Sewer Connection Fee Update and the Water Connection Fee Update. Under the agreement, Galardi 
Rothstein Group will analyze the current connection fee structure and make recommendations for a projected fee 
schedule to accommodate capacity and growth needs. These agreements for services include a not to exceed 
amount of $13,675.00 for Sanitary Sewer and $21,550.00 for Water. Both agreements have been reviewed by the 
City Attorney. 
 
Director Fredericksen stated the last fee analysis was conducted in 2008. The new Water Facility Plan addresses 
new capital needs as well. Any findings would be presented to Council for future action with related fees to be 
included in the Fee Resolution.  
 
It was moved by Councilmember Ehardt, seconded by Councilmember Smith, to approve the Professional Services 
Agreements with Galardi Rothstein Group for a not to exceed amount of $13,675.00 for Sanitary Sewer and 
$21,550.00 for Water, and give authorization for the Mayor and City Clerk to execute the necessary 
documents. Roll call as follows: Aye – Councilmembers Smith, Marohn, Ehardt, Hally, Radford. Nay – none. 
Motion carried. 
 
Subject: Professional Services Agreement – Sanitary Sewer Rate Study 
 
For your consideration is a Professional Services Agreement with Galardi Rothstein Group, with respect to the 
Sanitary Sewer Rate Study. Under the agreement, Galardi Rothstein Group will analyze the current Sanitary Sewer 
funding plan and create a rate model to meet City objectives. This agreement for services includes a not to exceed 
amount of $24,640.00 and has been reviewed by the City Attorney. 
 
Councilmember Ehardt stated this is a similar agreement to the previous discussion item.  
 
It was moved by Councilmember Ehardt, seconded by Councilmember Smith, to approve the Professional Services 
Agreements with Galardi Rothstein Group for a not to exceed amount of $24,640.00 for Sanitary Sewer Rate Study, 
and give authorization for the Mayor and City Clerk to sign the necessary documents. Roll call as follows: Aye – 
Councilmembers Marohn, Ehardt, Hally, Radford, Smith. Nay – none. Motion carried. 
 
Parks and Recreation submitted the following item for consideration: 
 
Subject: Right-of-Way Grant 
 
For your consideration is a Right-of-Way Grant with the Bureau of Land Management (BLM) for the proposed 
right-of-way, Serial Number IDI-38145, for facilities on public land associated with Idaho Falls Raceway at Noise 
Park and an access road. The City of Idaho Falls entered into an agreement in 1967 with the Idaho Army National 
Guard for the described right-of-way. However, during the process of Parks and Recreation applying for a grant for 
the Idaho Falls Raceway at Noise Park, it was discovered that the BLM was the land owner, not the Idaho Army 
National Guard. There are no fees associated with this right-of-way. This proposed grant would expire in 2046. 
This agreement has been reviewed and approved by the City attorney. 
 
Parks Superintendent Brent Martin stated although the BLM owns the land, the Idaho National Guard is allowed to 
operate on the property as a training facility.  



JUNE 20, 2016  

8 

 

It was moved by Councilmember Radford, seconded by Councilmember Hally, to approve the Right-of-Way Grant 
with the Bureau of Land Management for facilities associated with Idaho Falls Raceway at Noise Park and access 
road and authorize the Mayor and City Clerk to sign the necessary documents. Roll call as follows: Aye – 
Councilmembers Hally, Marohn, Radford, Smith, Ehardt. Nay – none. Motion carried. 
 
Idaho Falls Airport submitted the following item for consideration: 
 
Subject: Idaho Falls Airport Work Orders 16-03, 16-04 and 16-05 with T-0 Engineers FAA AIP Project No. 3-16-
0018-041- 2016 Design Services for Land Acquisition, TWY A Rehabilitation and N. Terminal Expansion Projects 
 
For your consideration are Work Orders 16-03, 16-04 and 16-05 under the approved Master Professional Services 
Agreement between the City of Idaho Falls and T-0 Engineers, Inc. for the following 2016 Federal Aviation 
Administration (FAA) Airport Improvement Program (AIP) 41 Grant design projects:  
 

16-03:  Land Acquisition Services for Runway 2/20 Protection Zones. Cost $158,480.00  
16-04:  Design of Rehabilitation of Taxiway A, C and Connecting Taxiways. Cost $504,140.00  
16-05:  Design Concept and Budget Report for N. Terminal Expansion. Cost $111,296.00  
 

These projects have been approved to be funded through the FAA AIP 41 Grant at 93.75% with the remaining costs 
covered under Airport budgeted funds. The City Attorney has reviewed said work orders. 
 
Airport Director Craig Davis stated due to FAA AIP projects, a consultant is required for any preparation work 
including survey, appraisal, and other processes for a buy/sell agreement. He reviewed the locations for the land 
acquisition, indicating a portion of this land acquisition of approximately 7.2 acres has been included in the 2010 
Master Plan Update per federal regulations for runway protection zone. He stated funding has not previously been 
available.  Director Davis stated the expansion project will include three (3) options and concepts for two (2) 
baggage claim systems.  
 
It was moved by Councilmember Radford, seconded by Councilmember Marohn, to approve Work Orders 16-03, 
16-04 and 16-05 with T-0 Engineers and give authorization for the Mayor and City Clerk to sign any necessary 
documents. Roll call as follows: Aye – Councilmembers Ehardt, Radford, Smith, Marohn, Hally. Nay – none. 
Motion carried.  
 
Mayor Pro Tem Hally reminded the Councilmembers of the Association of Idaho Cities (AIC) meetings being held 
in Boise later in the week.  
 
There being no further business, it was moved by Councilmember Marohn, seconded by Councilmember Radford, 
to adjourn the meeting at 8:40 p.m. which motion passed following a unanimous vote.  
 
 
_____________________________________   _______________________________________ 
  CITY CLERK       MAYOR 



JUNE 29, 2016 

The City Council of the City of Idaho Falls met in Special Council Meeting (Council Work Session – Parks 
Reports), Wednesday, June 29, 2016, at the Joe Marmo/Wayne Lehto Ice Arena, 390 Rogers Street in Idaho Falls, 
Idaho at 5:30 p.m. 
 
There were present: 
Mayor Rebecca L. Noah Casper 
Councilmember Ed Marohn 
Councilmember Michelle Ziel-Dingman (departed at 6:15 p.m.) 
Councilmember Barbara Ehardt (departed at 6:35 p.m.) 
Councilmember John B. Radford 
Councilmember David M. Smith  
 
Absent: 
Councilmember Thomas Hally 
 
Also present: 
Kerry McCullough, Public Information Officer 
Greg Weitzel, Parks and Recreation Director 
Brent Martin, Parks Superintendent 
Kathy Hampton, City Clerk 
 
Mayor Casper called the meeting to order at 5:35 p.m. and requested a motion to amend the agenda to include 
announcements items. It was moved by Councilmember Marohn, seconded by Councilmember Smith, to amend the 
agenda as requested from Mayor Casper. Motion passed following a unanimous vote.  
 
Mayor Casper stated the Councilmembers will be receiving their budget packets in the near future. She indicated 
the elected officials had been given courtesy passes to attend the Idaho Falls Chukars games, the City Attorney is 
determining the value of the passes. Mayor Casper also stated elected officials are only able to receive one courtesy 
pass to the Melaleuca Freedom Celebration and any additional tickets must be purchased. She reminded the 
Councilmembers of the $50 gift limitations.  
 
Tautphaus Park Master Planning Progress Report: 
 
Parks and Recreation Director Greg Weitzel introduced Richard Shaw, Michael Tunte, and Jeff Zimmermann, 
Design Workshop consulting team. 
 
Mr. Shaw indicated the purpose of a Master Plan is to visualize the future. He stated Tautphaus Park is an important 
community asset and this Master Plan should be a guiding factor for the next 10-20 years. Summary of community 
feedback from February, 2016, included: 
 

 the need to create safe pedestrian, bicycle, and automobile access 
 the park provides recreation areas 
 entrances, roadways, and parking areas are difficult to maneuver 
 current programs are a significant investment/asset 
 trees and landscaping adds to the character of the park 
 the zoo should be expanded to allow additional educational programs 
 continuation of legacy of the park 

 
Mr. Tunte reviewed two (2) Master Plan options for Tautphaus Park with brief discussion/comments throughout. 
 
Option 1 included: multi-use trails (paved and unpaved), relocation of west-side entrances, expansion of Funland 
and rides to include a splash pad and miniature golf course, expansion of skate park, expansion of zoo, additional 
sheet of ice for Ice Arena, portable events stage, some softball and/or baseball fields relocated to Old Butte Road to 



JUNE 29, 2016 

allow adequate parking, Lilac Circle redesigned to allow public art, additional shelters, botanical garden, expansion 
of fountain to include pond feature with shelters, and improved roadways.  
 
Option 2 included: relocation of zoo entrance, splash pad become part of all-access playground, additional sheet of 
ice for Ice Arena, Sunken Diamond softball field redesigned for amphitheater, Lilac Circle redesigned to allow 
public art, walking system around the fountain, fountain plaza, canal trail, and improved roadways.  
 
Mr. Shaw indicated valuable community feedback will be compiled and a final Master Plan is scheduled to be 
completed by August, 2016.  
 
Heritage Park Concept Plan Report: 
 
Heritage Park is Idaho Falls’ newest park and was acquired through land donation. The park is located on the west 
side of the Snake River with natural vegetation, rock formations, and water falls. The Concept Plan includes a road 
network, surface storm water/water gardens, ample green space including an amphitheater, kids’ nature play area, 
and promontory with a spiral walkway to an elevated level that could allow scenic overlook. The Concept Plan 
could intercept current Riverwalk paths through the park as well as a Heritage Trail Network, offering historical 
information.  
 
There being loss of quorum, the meeting adjourned at 6:35 p.m.  
 
 
               
  CITY CLERK         MAYOR 
 

























City of Idaho Falls
Engineering Department

Bid Tabulation

Project..... Well 18 Production Well Number...... 1-38-6-3-WTR-2016-17

Submitted Kent J. Fugal, P.E., PTOE Date.......... June 21, 2016

Engineer's Estimate O'Keefe Drilling 
Company, Inc.

Item 
Number Description

Estimated 
Quantity Unit Unit Price Total Amount Unit Price Total Amount

SPECIAL PROVISIONS
SP - 1 Mobilization/Demobilization 1 L.S. $35,000.00 $35,000.00 $18,600.00 $18,600.00

SP - 2 24" Drive Shoe 1 EACH $2,500.00 $2,500.00 $475.00 $475.00

SP - 3 Drill 24" Temporary Casing 100 L.F. $300.00 $30,000.00 $240.00 $24,000.00

SP - 4 Drill 20" Casing 90 L.F. $225.00 $20,250.00 $215.00 $19,350.00

SP - 5 20" Drive Shoe 1 EACH $1,000.00 $1,000.00 $425.00 $425.00

SP - 6 Install 20" 0.375" Wall Casing 192 L.F. $100.00 $19,200.00 $74.00 $14,208.00

SP - 7 Grouting 6 C.Y. $500.00 $3,000.00 $333.00 $1,998.00

SP - 8 Pull 24" Temporary Casing 100 L.F. $50.00 $5,000.00 $35.00 $3,500.00

SP - 9 Drill Nominal 20" Open Hole 145 L.F. $180.00 $26,100.00 $200.00 $29,000.00

SP - 10 Install 16" 0.050" Slot S.S. Well Screen 145 L.F. $125.00 $18,125.00 $143.00 $20,735.00

SP - 11 Install 16" S.S. Head Pipe 5 L.F. $125.00 $625.00 $232.20 $1,161.00

SP - 12 K-Packer 16-20" 1 EACH $2,250.00 $2,250.00 $2,155.00 $2,155.00

SP - 13 Well Development 10 HR $800.00 $8,000.00 $305.00 $3,050.00

SP - 14 Well Disinfection 1 L.S. $500.00 $500.00 $3,000.00 $3,000.00

SP - 15 Pump Test Mobilization/Demobilization 1 L.S. $25,000.00 $25,000.00 $16,830.00 $16,830.00

SP - 16 Pumping Test 38 HR $290.00 $11,020.00 $305.00 $11,590.00

SP - 17 Rig Directed Rate 4 HR $80.00 $320.00 $375.00 $1,500.00

TOTAL $207,890.00 $171,577.00

WTR-2016-17 Engr Est.xlsx

Bid_Tabulation Page 1 of 1
6/21/2016

YG



  Special Provisions 
  Page 22 

 

1-38-6-3-WTR-2016-17, June 10, 2016 
ED-6, Rev. 4/15/2016 

 

 
Figure 2. Map of well lot for well 18 and drilling location. 





City of Idaho Falls
Engineering Department

Bid Tabulation

Project..... Well 19 Drilling Number...... 2-38-17-1-WTR-2015-29

Submitted   Kent J. Fugal, P.E., PTOE Date.......... June 21, 2016

Engineer's Estimate

Item 
Number Description

Estimated 
Quantity Unit Unit Price Total Amount Unit Price Total Amount

SPECIAL PROVISIONS
SP - 1 Mobilization/Demobilization 1 L.S. $35,000.00 $35,000.00 $18,600.00 $18,600.00

SP - 2 24" Drive Shoe 1 EACH $2,500.00 $2,500.00 $475.00 $475.00

SP - 3 Drill 24" Temporary Casing 150 L.F. $300.00 $45,000.00 $240.00 $36,000.00

SP - 4 Drill 20" Casing 110 L.F. $225.00 $24,750.00 $215.00 $23,650.00

SP - 5 20" Drive Shoe 1 EACH $1,000.00 $1,000.00 $425.00 $425.00

SP - 6 Install 20" 0.375" Wall Casing 262 L.F. $100.00 $26,200.00 $74.00 $19,388.00

SP - 7 Grouting 9 C.Y. $500.00 $4,500.00 $333.00 $2,997.00

SP - 8 Pull 24" Temporary Casing 150 L.F. $50.00 $7,500.00 $35.00 $5,250.00

SP - 9 Drill Nominal 20" Open Hole 120 L.F. $180.00 $21,600.00 $200.00 $24,000.00

SP - 10 Install 16" 0.050" Slot S.S. Well Screen 120 L.F. $125.00 $15,000.00 $143.00 $17,160.00

SP - 11 Install 16" S.S. Head Pipe 5 L.F. $125.00 $625.00 $232.20 $1,161.00

SP - 12 K-Packer 16-20" 1 EACH $2,250.00 $2,250.00 $2,155.00 $2,155.00

SP - 13 Well Development 10 HR $800.00 $8,000.00 $305.00 $3,050.00

SP - 14 Well Disinfection 1 L.S. $500.00 $500.00 $3,000.00 $3,000.00

SP - 15 Pump Test Mobilization/Demobilization 1 L.S. $25,000.00 $25,000.00 $18,150.00 $18,150.00

SP - 16 Pumping Test 38 HR $290.00 $11,020.00 $305.00 $11,590.00

SP - 17 Rig Directed Rate 4 HR $800.00 $3,200.00 $375.00 $1,500.00

TOTAL $233,645.00 $188,551.00

O'Keefe Drilling 
Company, Inc.

WTR-2015-29 Engr Est.xlsx

Bid_Tabulation Page 1 of 1
6/21/2016

YG



  Special Provisions 
  Page 22 

 

2-38-17-1-WTR-2015-29, June 10, 2016 
ED-6, Rev. 4/15/2016 

 

 
Figure 2. Map of well lot for well 19 and drilling location. 





City of Idaho Falls
Engineering Department

Bid Tabulation

Project..... Water Meter Installation - 2016 Number...... 0-00-00-0-WTR-2016-27

Submitted   Kent J. Fugal, P.E., PTOE Date.......... July 6, 2016

Engineer's Estimate 3H Construction, LLC

Item 
Number Description

Estimated 
Quantity Unit Unit Price Total Amount Unit Price Total Amount

EARTHWORK AND BASES
209.03.4 Removal of Curb and Gutter 170 L.F. $15.00 $2,550.00 $10.00 $1,700.00

209.03.5 Removal of Sidewalk 68 S.Y. $25.00 $1,700.00 $12.00 $816.00

INCIDENTAL CONSTRUCTION
409.02.2 Adjust Water Valve Box (Collar Only) 1 EACH $200.00 $200.00 $500.00 $500.00

409.03.2 Adjust Curb Stop Box 1 EACH $150.00 $150.00 $350.00 $350.00

409.05.8 Remove and Reset Fence 20 L.F. $27.00 $540.00 $42.00 $840.00

409.21.2 Repair Sprinkler Systems 1 L.S. $5,000.00 $5,000.00 $10,000.00 $10,000.00

PORTLAND CEMENT CONCRETE
509.02.2 Combination Curb and Gutter - Type STANDARD 130 L.F. $35.00 $4,550.00 $45.00 $5,850.00

509.02.2 Combination Curb and Gutter - Type NON-STANDARD 40 L.F. $35.00 $1,400.00 $45.00 $1,800.00

509.03.2 4" Flatwork 64 S.Y. $65.00 $4,160.00 $72.00 $4,608.00

509.03.2 6" Flatwork 4 S.Y. $75.00 $300.00 $98.00 $392.00

WATER LINES
609.01.2 Temporary Water Service 1 L.S. $3,000.00 $3,000.00 $15,000.00 $15,000.00

609.02.2 4" Pipe 10 L.F. $10.00 $100.00 $30.00 $300.00

609.02.2 6" Pipe 10 L.F. $10.00 $100.00 $30.00 $300.00

609.06.2 2" Service Line 7 L.F. $12.00 $84.00 $30.00 $210.00

609.06.3 2" Service Connection 1 EACH $700.00 $700.00 $600.00 $600.00

609.06.4 1" Reconnecting Service Line 1 EACH $550.00 $550.00 $600.00 $600.00

609.06.4 1½"  Reconnecting Service Line 1 EACH $675.00 $675.00 $600.00 $600.00

609.06.4 2" Reconnecting Service Line 1 EACH $750.00 $750.00 $600.00 $600.00

TRENCH EXCAVATION AND BACKFILL
809.01.2 Trench Excavation and Backfill - Class II 7 L.F. $30.00 $210.00 $40.00 $280.00

809.02.2 Unsuitable Material Excavation 10 C.Y. $40.00 $400.00 $40.00 $400.00

809.03.2 Rock Excavation 20 L.F. $150.00 $3,000.00 $120.00 $2,400.00

809.04.2 Base Stabilization Material 10 C.Y. $50.00 $500.00 $40.00 $400.00

809.10.2 Removal and Replacement of Landscaped Areas 110 L.F. $30.00 $3,300.00 $75.00 $8,250.00

809.11.2 Removal and Replacement of Asphalt Plantmix and Aggregate Base (2"/6") 50 L.F. $40.00 $2,000.00 $125.00 $6,250.00

809.11.2 Removal and Replacement of Asphalt Plantmix and Aggregate Base (3"/8") 20 L.F. $50.00 $1,000.00 $140.00 $2,800.00

809.11.2 Removal and Replacement of Asphalt Plantmix and Aggregate Base (4"/10") 5 L.F. $60.00 $300.00 $200.00 $1,000.00

SPECIAL PROVISIONS
SP - 1 1" Water Meter 1 EACH $2,200.00 $2,200.00 $2,700.00 $2,700.00

SP - 2 1 1/2" Water Meter 2 EACH $2,200.00 $4,400.00 $3,500.00 $7,000.00

SP - 3 2" Water Meter 10 EACH $4,200.00 $42,000.00 $3,800.00 $38,000.00

SP - 4 3" Water Meter 1 EACH $7,200.00 $7,200.00 $4,100.00 $4,100.00

SP - 5 4" Water Meter 7 EACH $7,200.00 $50,400.00 $4,100.00 $28,700.00

SP - 6 6" Water Meter 1 EACH $9,800.00 $9,800.00 $4,500.00 $4,500.00

SP - 7 2" Inside Water Meter 2 EACH $1,200.00 $2,400.00 $1,750.00 $3,500.00

SP - 8 3" Inside Water Meter 3 EACH $1,600.00 $4,800.00 $1,850.00 $5,550.00

TOTAL $160,419.00 $160,896.00

WTR-2016-27 Engr Est.xlsx

Bid_Tabulation Page 1 of 1
7/7/2016

YG











































































































































 

 
The Police Department respectfully requests that the attached Amendment to the Dog 
Control Ordinance be placed on the City Council Meeting Agenda for 14 July 2016.   
 
The Dog Control Ordinance has references to kennels as a place; which is in conflict with 
current zoning ordinances.  Zoning ordinance define kennels as a use.   
 
The staff recommends replacing the City’s current kennel licensing with an additional dog 
permit.  The amendment also provides for procedural due process to appeal a denial of an 
additional dog permit.    
 
The City Attorney has drafted an amendment to City Ordinance Title 5, Chapter 2. 
 
COUNCIL AGENDA ACTION:  For Council to approve the amended Ordinance under the 
suspension of rules requiring three complete and separate readings and that it be read by title 
and published by summary (or consider the Ordinance on the first reading and that it be 
ready by title, or reject the Ordinance).     
 
 
 
 
/lh 
MCBRIDE-072.2016 MEMO 

Mayor Casper, Kathy Hampton  
Mark McBride, Chief of Police  
12 July, 2016 

Council Agenda/Dog Control Ordinance 
5-6-1 & 5-6-7                         



 

DOG CONTROL ORDINANCE  PAGE 1 OF 7 
 

 
ORDINANCE NO. 2016- 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF IDAHO FALLS, IDAHO, A 
MUNICIPAL CORPORATION OF THE STATE OF IDAHO, AMENDING 
SECTION 5-6-1 AND 5-6-7 OF THE IDAHO FALLS CITY CODE; 
REPLACING THE CITY’S CURRENT LICENSING PROGRAM FOR 
COMMERCIAL AND NON-COMMERCIAL DOG KENNELS AND WITH 
AN ANNUAL ADDITIONAL DOG PERMIT PROGRAM FOR UP TO 
THREE (3) DOGS IN ADDITION TO THE TWO (2) CURRENTLY 
ALLOWED BY RIGHT WITHIN THE CITY’S LIMITS, WHICH INCLUDES 
FEES, INSPECTION AND REVIEW BY CITY STAFF, AND APPEALS FOR 
DENIAL AND REVOCATION OF SUCH PERMIT; AND PROVIDING 
SEVERABILITY, CODIFICATION, PUBLICATION BY SUMMARY, AND 
ESTABLISHING EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 

WHEREAS, City kennel licensing is currently required in commercial and noncommercial 
zoning districts for people who wish to have more than two (2) dogs; and 

WHEREAS, such kennel licensing includes a requirement for consent of neighbors in order to 
successfully be granted such a license; and  

WHEREAS, the kennel licensing program has not resulted in the desired regulation and control 
of potential nuisances; and 

WHEREAS, the City staff believes that the current kennel licensing program is no longer 
necessary, if an adjustment in the Code is made; and 

WHEREAS, complaints related to the number of dogs in any one (1) dwelling or any one (1) 
business property may be handled through general public nuisance Ordinances and statutes; and 

WHEREAS, the City wishes to establish an annual additional dog permit which allows review 
by City staff, to include inspections, an annual non-refundable fee, decisions to be made 
regarding dog health and safety through an inspection, and insuring that the presence of 
additional dogs are permitted by the owner or landlord; and 

WHEREAS, the City wishes to establish an appeal process and fee for denial or revocation of 
a permit; and 

WHEREAS, in order to facilitate such appeal, the City establishes an Animal Control Review 
Board that consists of the City animal service manager, an Idaho Falls Police Department 
services captain, and a licensed veterinarian; and  

WHEREAS, an appeal from the Animal Control Review Board may be made to the City 
Council; and 



 

DOG CONTROL ORDINANCE  PAGE 2 OF 7 
 

WHEREAS, a non-refundable fee for the application for the license for the Animal Control 
Review Board hearing and for the City Council review of a denial should be provided to reflect 
the amount the services required by such actions, and  

WHEREAS, the City Council believes this to be a streamlining of the current process and a fair 
resolution of concerns regarding the current process. 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE MAYOR AND COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF IDAHO FALLS, IDAHO, THAT: 

SECTION 1.     Section 5-6-1 of the City Code of the City of Idaho Falls, Idaho, is hereby 
amended, as follows: 

 5-6-1: DEFINITIONS:  
 
Certain terms used in this Chapter shall have the meaning ascribed below:  
 
A. ANIMAL CONTROL SHELTER: Any animal shelter, lot, premises or building maintained by 
the City for the confinement and care of animals.  
 
B. AT LARGE: A dog shall be deemed to be at large when off the property of the owner, and not 
under restraint or control.  
 
C. DOG: A dog of an age four (4) months or older that is kept as a household pet.  
 
D. DOG KENNEL: Any place where more than two (2) dogs are kept.  
 
DE. ENCLOSURE: A fence or structure suitable to prevent escape of the animal or the entry of 
young children.  
 
EF. NEUTERED: Rendered permanently incapable of reproduction.  
 
FG. NUISANCE ANIMAL: A nuisance animal, including a dog or cat, is one that:  
 

1. Frequently runs at large;  
2. Damages, soils, or defecates on private property other than property owned or 
controlled by the animal owner or on public property, including walks and recreation 
areas, unless such waste is immediately removed and properly disposed of by the animal 
owner or handler;  
3. Causes unsanitary or dangerous conditions;  
4. Causes a disturbance by excessive barking or other noise making  
5. Creates a general public nuisance; and/or  
6. Chases vehicles, or molests, attacks, or interferes with persons or other domestic 
animals on public property. 
  

GH. OWNER: A person having the right of property or custody of an animal or who keeps or 
harbors an animal or knowingly permits an animal to remain on or about any premises occupied, 
owned, or controlled by that person. 
  



 

DOG CONTROL ORDINANCE  PAGE 3 OF 7 
 

HI. PERSON: Any individual, corporation, partnership, organization or institution commonly 
recognized by law as a unit.  
 
IJ. RESTRAINT: A dog shall be considered under restraint if it is confined within a structure or 
fenced yard, is secured by a leash, lead or chain or is confined within a vehicle in a manner that 
prevents escape.  
 
JK. UNLICENSED DOG: A dog for which a license has not been issued for the current year, or to 
which the tag provided for in this Chapter is not attached.  
 
KL. VACCINATION: The inoculation of an animal against rabies in accordance with state law 
and the "Compendium of Animal Rabies Prevention and Control" published by the National 
Association of the State Public Health Veterinarians and published annually in the Journal of 
the American Veterinary Medical Association. 
 

 

SECTION 2.   Section 5-6-7 of the City Code of the City of Idaho Falls, Idaho, is hereby 
amended, as follows: 
 
5-6-7   OWNERSHIP OF DOGS LIMITED: 
 

(A)  It shall be unlawful to maintain upon the premises of any one (1) dwelling or upon 
the premises of any one (1) business property more than two (2) dogs except, where 
accommodation or variation from these requirements is appropriate under current Idaho 
or federal law or where allowed by the Zoning Code or by this Chapter. operate a dog 
kennel or to keep upon the premises of any one household or upon the premises of any 
one business property, more than two (2) dogs unless the owner or person in charge 
thereof has a commercial or noncommercial kennel license. 
 
(B)  Annual Additional Dog Permit.   

 
1.  Application.  An application to have up to three (3) dogs in addition to the two (2) 
dogs allowed by this Chapter (for a total number of dogs not to exceed five (5)) shall be 
made to the Clerk. The application shall be accompanied by the following: (a) the annual 
non-refundable fee for the additional dog permit; (b) the name, address, and other 
contact information for the Owner of each dog and for the property on which the dog(s) 
will be kept; (c) identification  of each dog (their breed(s), name and license number); 
(d) verification of spaying or neutering, where applicable; (e) a depiction of the outside 
area showing all fencing, kennel(s), and dog run(s) which are capable of confining dogs; 
(f) a statement signed by the person owning or controlling the property that permission 
has been granted to have more than two (2) dogs on such premises; and (g) a signed 
agreement that allows the City and its agents, to enter onto the property (including the 
dwelling and interior parts of the property) at any time 8:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m., on any 
day, to conduct an inspection of the property for the purposes of verifying that the 
permittee is in compliance with the permit. 
 



 

DOG CONTROL ORDINANCE  PAGE 4 OF 7 
 

2.  Fee.  A fee established from time to time by Resolution of the Council shall be 
charged for each additional dog permit allowed by this Chapter. Such fee shall be 
annual, non-refundable, and not pro-rated. 
 
3.  Inspection.  Prior to issuance of the additional dog permit, the location where 
additional dog(s) shall be kept will be inspected by a City animal control officer who 
will verify that the planned location for the additional dog(s) is sanitary, safe, and that 
dog escape or nuisance is not likely.  
 
4.   Annual Permit. The additional dog permit allowed by this Chapter shall be for a term 
of not more than one (1) calendar year and shall expire annually at midnight December 
31 of every year. 
 
5.  Permit Denial or Revocation.  Prior to the denial or revocation of the additional dog  
permit, the City shall provide written notice of the denial or revocation to the applicant 
or permittee.  Such written notice shall be sent by certified mail or hand delivery to the 
address provided in the application.  The written notice shall state the reason(s) for such 
revocation or denial and shall state that such applicant or permittee may request an 
appeal to the Animal Control Review Board hearing, as provided herein.  Notice of 
denial or revocation is effective on the date the notice is placed in the mailbox 
maintained by the U.S. Postal Service, or is hand delivered to the applicant or permittee.   
 
6.  When a City animal control officer or peace officer certifies to the Clerk in writing 
that there is an immediate danger to life or health of a person because of additional dogs, 
the application or license may be immediately and summarily denied or revoked.  Under 
such conditions, notice of such denial or revocation will be given as soon as practicable 
thereafter. 
 
7.  Failure by the City to give notice as provided in this Chapter, shall not establish a 
right to the additional dog permit under this Chapter. 
 
C.  Appeals.   

 
1.  Appeal to the City Animal Control Review Board.  If an application for the additional 
dog permit is denied or revoked, the applicant or permittee may give written notice of 
appeal of such denial or revocation to the Clerk. The Animal Control Review Board 
shall consist of the City Animal Service Manager, the Idaho Falls Police Department 
Services Captain, and a licensed veterinarian.  The Animal Control Review Board shall 
then set a time and a place for such hearing and the Clerk shall inform the applicant or 
licensee of the hearing date in writing, at least five (5) business days prior to such Board 
hearing. The Animal Control Review Board will review the application and any relevant 
testimony and materials and will make a determination regarding issuance or revocation 
of the permit within twenty-one (21) calendar days following the date of the Board 
hearing. 
 



 

DOG CONTROL ORDINANCE  PAGE 5 OF 7 
 

2.  Appeal to City Council.  A party adversely affected by a decision made by the Animal 
Control Review Board may appeal the Board’s decision to the Council by filing a notice 
of appeal in writing to the Clerk.  A time and a place for such hearing shall be set within 
thirty (30) days following the receipt of the notice of appeal, and the Clerk shall inform 
the applicant or permittee or person affected of the hearing date in writing at least five 
(5) business days prior to such Council hearing.  At or following the hearing, Council 
may uphold the decision to deny or revoke or may direct the Clerk to issue a permit 
which has been denied or revoked, upon finding of good cause for the issuance of such 
permit. 
 
3.  Failure by an applicant, person appealing, or their representative to appear before the 
Council at the time scheduled to consider the appeal shall result in the automatic denial 
of such appeal. 
 
4.  Fee for appeal.  A non-refundable fee shall for appeal to the Animal Control Review 
Board and/or to the Council, shall be in an amount set from time-to-time by Resolution 
of Council. 

 
(B) Noncommercial License: Applications for noncommercial kennel licenses shall be made to 
the Clerk. Such license shall not be issued unless at least seventy five percent (75%) of all the 
owners or persons in possession of premises located within one hundred feet (100') of the 
premises upon which said noncommercial kennel is to be maintained, have consented to the 
operation of such noncommercial kennel. Upon receipt of such application, the City Clerk shall 
request Animal Services to poll such owners to determine if they are willing to consent to the 
issuance of a noncommercial kennel license to the applicant. For the purposes of determining 
such percentage, persons having joint ownership or control of such premises shall be considered 
as one person. The applicant shall also pay a license fee of fifty dollars ($50) annually, which 
fee shall be returned to the applicant if the license is not issued. The applicant shall allow an 
annual inspection of the kennel by Animal Services personnel and any inspections that may be 
warranted in response to complaints or violations of this Chapter supported by probable cause. 
The application shall state the name and address of the owner, the location of the non-
commercial kennel, the number of dogs presently kept and the breed(s) of the dogs. Dogs kept 
in a noncommercial kennel shall be owned only by members of the immediate household and a 
separate dog license shall be purchased for each dog. A noncommercial kennel license shall not 
be transferable and shall expire on December 31st of the year of issuance. Upon renewal of a 
noncommercial kennel license, a re-polling of neighboring owners shall not be required, unless 
within one (1) year prior to the expiration of such license, one or more complaints have been 
filed in writing with the Police Department or Animal Services regarding the applicant's 
maintenance of such kennel. In such event, no license shall be issued until Animal Services has 
conducted a new poll and the required consents have been obtained. No person holding a 
noncommercial kennel license shall keep any dog for breeding purposes or for the purpose of 
raising such dog for commercial sale. All dogs, except registered purebred dogs, kept pursuant 
to a noncommercial kennel license shall be sterilized within twelve (12) weeks after their date 
of birth. No license shall be issued unless the applicant i) provides written certification by a 
licensed veterinarian that all licensed animals, other than purebred animals, have been sterilized 
or the applicant provides a certificate from an Animal Control officer that he or she has 



 

DOG CONTROL ORDINANCE  PAGE 6 OF 7 
 

inspected each animal and verified such sterilization, and ii) the applicant provides proof of 
registration by a recognized kennel club for each unsterilized purebred dog kept on the premises. 
In no event may the licensee or applicant keep more than one breed of unsterilized purebred 
dogs on the premises. A maximum of five (5) dogs may be kept upon the premises owned by a 
person holding a noncommercial kennel license.  
 

SECTION 3.   Non-Conforming Uses.  Any lawful pet use established pursuant to the City’s 
Zoning Code prior to the effective date of this Ordinance shall be allowed to continue as a non-
conforming use pursuant to such Zoning Code.  No non-conforming pet use shall be allowed to 
increase in extent or intensity and no dogs in excess of the three (3) dogs allowed by this 
Ordinance shall be allowed to replace any dog owned at the time that such non-conforming use 
was recognized in an attempt to allow such non-conformity to continue. 

SECTION 4.   Intent.  It is Council’s intent hereby to allow the owners of property with lawful 
uses, to keep up to five (5) dogs currently owned until the number of such dogs naturally 
decreases to not more than three (3) dogs per dwelling.  It is also Council’s intent that current 
non-conforming pet uses are extinguished as soon as possible under the law. 

SECTION 5.   Savings and Severability Clause.  The provisions and parts of this Ordinance 
are intended to be severable.  If any section, sentence, clause or phrase of this Ordinance should 
be held to be invalid or unconstitutional by a court of competent jurisdiction, such invalidity or 
unconstitutionality shall not affect the validity or constitutionality of any other section, 
sentence, clause or phrase of this Ordinance.  The remaining Sections of Title 5, Chapter 6, shall 
be in full force and effect. 

SECTION 6.   Codification Clause.  The City Clerk is instructed to immediately forward this 
Ordinance to the codifier of the official municipal code for proper revision of the Code. 

SECTION 7.   Publication.  This Ordinance, or a summary thereof in compliance with Idaho 
Code, shall be published once in the official newspaper of the City, and shall take effect 
immediately upon its passage, approval, and publication. 

SECTION 8.   Effective Date.  This Ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after 
its passage, approval and publication. 

PASSED by the City Council and APPROVED by the Mayor of the City of Idaho Falls, Idaho, 
this _____ day of ____________, 2016. 

        
       CITY OF IDAHO FALLS, IDAHO 
 
 
       ___________________________________ 
       REBECCA L. NOAH CASPER, MAYOR 
 
 
 



 

DOG CONTROL ORDINANCE  PAGE 7 OF 7 
 

 
ATTEST: 
 
 
_____________________________________ 
KATHY HAMPTON, CITY CLERK 
 
(SEAL) 
 

 

STATE OF IDAHO  )  

    )  ss: 
County of Bonneville  ) 
 
 I, KATHY HAMPTON, CITY CLERK OF THE CITY OF IDAHO FALLS, IDAHO, 
DO HEREBY CERTIFY: 
 

“AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF IDAHO FALLS, IDAHO, A 
MUNICIPAL CORPORATION OF THE STATE OF IDAHO, AMENDING 
SECTION 5-6-1 AND 5-6-7 OF THE IDAHO FALLS CITY CODE; 
REPLACING THE CITY’S CURRENT LICENSING PROGRAM FOR 
COMMERCIAL AND NON-COMMERCIAL DOG KENNELS AND WITH 
AN ANNUAL ADDITIONAL DOG PERMIT PROGRAM FOR UP TO 
THREE (3) DOGS IN ADDITION TO THE TWO (2) CURRENTLY 
ALLOWED BY RIGHT WITHIN THE CITY’S LIMITS, WHICH INCLUDES 
FEES, INSPECTION AND REVIEW BY CITY STAFF, AND APPEALS FOR 
DENIAL AND REVOCATION OF SUCH PERMIT; AND PROVIDING 
SEVERABILITY, CODIFICATION, PUBLICATION BY SUMMARY, AND 
ESTABLISHING EFFECTIVE DATE.” 

 

 

 

 

 
      _______________________________________ 
      KATHY HAMPTON, CITY CLERK 
 

 






















































































	07-14-2016 Regular Council Meeting
	Consent Agenda
	4.A. Idaho Falls Power
	4.B. City Clerk
	Regular Agenda
	5.A.1) MS - Bid IF-16-1 Sole Source Purchase
	5.A.2) MS - Bid IF-16-K Hot Asphalt Plant Mix
	5.A.3) MS - Bid Award, City Hall ADA Door
	5.B.1) PW - Bid Award, Well 18 Production Well
	5.B.2) PW - Bid Award, Well 19 Drilling
	5.B.3) PW - Bid Award, Water Meter Installation
	5.B.4) PW - Professional Service Agreements with Strata
	5.B.5) PW - Professional Services Agreements, Road Safety Audit
	5.C.1) P&R - Change Order #1
	5.D.1) IFP - Ordinance, Public Fiber Optic Network
	5.D.2) IFP - Resolution to Reserve Fiber Pairs
	5.E.1) Airport - FAA AIP Grant
	5.F.1) IFPD - Dog Control Ordinance
	5.G.1) CDSD - Waiver of Electric Line Extension Fees
	5.G.2) CDSD - Extension to Record Final Plat, Lorin C. Anderson
	5.G.3) CDSD - Extension to Record Final Plat, Hollipark
	5.G.4) CDSD - Jackson Hole Junction
	5.G.5) CDSD - CUP, Third Ward Medical Office



